Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800, Watertown, New York 13601
Telephone: (315) 782-5865 or (800) 553-4111 Facsimile (315) 782-7915
www.jcida.com

Notice of Board Meeting - via Zoom Video Call

Date: May 20, 2020

To: W. Edward Walldroff
Robert Aliasso
John Jennings
Paul Warneck
William Johnson
Lisa L’Huillier

From: Chairman David Converse

Re: Notice of Board of Directors’ Meeting via Zoom Video Call

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency will hold
their Board Meeting via zoom video call on Thursday, June 4, 2020 at 9:00 a.m.

The draft minutes and video will be posted on the website at www.jcida.com following the
meeting.

pss

c: Donald Alexander
David Zembiec
Lyle Eaton
Jay Matteson
Marshall Weir
Joseph Russell, Esq.
Kent Burto
Christine Powers
Greg Gardner
Media



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800, Watertown, New York 13601
Telephone: (315) 782-5865 or (800) 553-4111 Facsimile (315) 782-7915
www.jcida.com

ZOOM BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Thursday, June 4, 2020 - 9:00 a.m.
I Call to Order
. Minutes — May 7, 2020
III.  Treasurer’s Report — May 31, 2020
IV.  Committee Reports
V. Unfinished Business
1. 146 Arsenal Street Building
VI.  New Business

VII. Counsel

1. Consider Environmental Resolution Number 06.04.2020.01 for OYA
Robinson Road LLC

2. Consider Preliminary Inducement Resolution Number 06.04.2020.02 for
OYA Robinson Road LLC

3. Consider Preliminary Agreement for OYA Robinson Road LLC

4. Consider Environmental Resolution Number 06.04.2020.03 for OYA
Wayside Drive LLC

5. Consider Preliminary Inducement Resolution Number 06.04.2020.04 for
OYA Wayside Drive LLC

6. Consider Preliminary Agreement for OYA Wayside Drive LLC

VIII. Adjournment



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Zoom Video Call ~ Board Meeting Minutes

May 7, 2020

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency held their board
meeting via zoom video call.

II.

IIL.

Iv.

VI

Call to Order: Chairman Converse called the meeting to order at 9:39 a.m.
Roll call for attendance

Board Members — David Converse, Chair, John Jennings, Paul Warneck, Robert E. Aliasso, Jr.,
W. Edward Walldroff, Lisa L’Huillier, William Johnson

Counsel — Joseph Russeli, Esq.

Staff — Donald Alexander, David Zembiec, Lyle Eaton, Peggy Sampson, Marshall Weir, Jay
Matteson

Media — Erin Bischoff from 7 News

Minutes: Minutes of the regular meeting held March 5, 2020 and the conference call held on
April 2, 2020 were presented. A motion to approve the minutes as presented was made by Mr.
Aliasso, seconded by Mr. Johnson. All in favor. Carried.

Treasurer’s Reports: Mr. Aliasso reviewed the financials for the periods ending March 31,
2020 and April 30, 2020. Mr. Aliasso asked if the loan clients are still paying. Mr. Eaton said 5
businesses are taking advantage of the three-month payment moratorium. After discussion, a
motion was made by Mr. Aliasso to accept the financial reports as presented, seconded by Mr.
Johnson. All in favor. Carried.

Committee Reports: None.
Unfinished Business:

1. 146 Arsenal Street Building — Mr. Alexander provided an update during the JCLDC board
meeting earlier this morning. He said that the building remains in excellent condition and
Jerry Countryman continues to perform daily walk throughs. He said that the YMCA is still
anxious to go forward with their project.

Mr. Jennings asked if the County has followed up about the remaining space for the
Workplace. Mr. Alexander said the conversation stopped just before the pandemic. Mr.
Johnson had no additional information to provide. Mr. Jennings wondered if the Agency will
put it on the market. Mr. Alexander said he will follow up with the County but will look for
the board’s guidance about putting it on the market.

2. Solar Projects — Mr. Alexander said that the Energy Committee is looking at a process to
follow. Mr. Warneck said that a project that falls under the UTEP will go faster than one that
is a deviation and we need to seek approval from the affected taxing jurisdictions. Mr.



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency e ;ﬂ
Zoom Video Call - Board Meeting Minutes & il 'ij Y _ V'
May 7, 2020

Alexander agreed. Mr. Warneck said sales tax abatement could be an issue. Mr. Jennings
asked if the Loan Review Committee would be reviewing the applications and making
recommendations to the board. Mr. Aliasso said that the Energy Committee will handle all
the analytical work and present a completed application to the Loan Review Committee who
would then make the recommendation to the full board. Mr. Aliasso thinks all of this could
be handled in one meeting day by scheduling the meetings throughout the day. Mr. Warneck
asked how long it takes from inducement to closing. Attorney Russell said it could take a
couple of months even on a fast track. Mr. Warneck said that getting local support through
public involvement before the IDA is involved is a good thing. He said there could be a
process for smaller projects with local approvals and a process for state approvals. Mr.
Warneck said creating the list of requirements before receiving the application will streamline
the process.

3. IDA Funds — Mr. Alexander said that there is an effort in Albany for IDA’s to use their funds
in a different way. Attorney Russell said that his Albany office is working with ESD on the
effort but didn’t have an update.

VII. New Business: None.

VIII.  Adjournment: With no further business before the board, a motion was made by Mr. Johnson to
adjourn the zoom video call, seconded by Mr. Walldroff. All in favor. The video call adjourned
at 10:06 a.m.



JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Income Statement for the Eight Month Period Ending May 31, 2020
Prepared by Lyle Eaton, May 27, 2020

Revenues

Application & Process Fees
RCI Annual CD Fund

Bond Admin Fee

PILOT/Sale Leaseback Fees
Fee Income - RLF Program
Fee Income - Micro Program
Interest Income

Interest Income - RLF Program
Late Payment Penalty RLF
Interest Income - City Fund
Interest Income - Micro Prog.
Late Payment Penalty - Micro
Miscellaneous Income

FTZ Fees

Total Revenues

Operations

Printed Material

Office Expense

RCI Fee Sharing

Admin Services Exp

Electric Service

D&O Insurance

Commercial Insurance

FTZ Expense

Legal - Unrestricted

Legal Corp Park

Accounting & Auditing
Consultants

Coffeen Park Taxes

Airport Park Taxes

Fees Expense

Bad Debt--RLF

Bad Debt--Micro

RLF Program Expense
Microenterprise Program Exp
RLF Audit Expense
Landscaping

Security

Plowing 146 Arsenal

IDA 146 Arsenal Bldg Expense
City/County Parking Lot Fund
insurance

Building Depreciation

146 Arsena Equip. Depreciation
146 Arsenal Electric

146 Arsenal Water

Salary Expense

Consultants

Miscellaneous - Unrestricted

Total Operations
Total Revenue
Total Expenses

Net Income Over Expenditures

$

$

Page: 1

UNRECONCILED

Current Year-to-Dat Current Previous Balance
Year e Total Month Month Remaining
Budget
3,000.00 3,520.00 $ 0.00 0.00 (520.00)
279,427.00 279,427.20 0.00 0.00 (0.20)
3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
518,017.00 358,050.00 10,000.00 0.00 159,967.00
43,424.00 28,948.48 3,618.56 3,618.56 14,475.52
26,137.00 16,778.24 2,097.28 2,097.28 9,358.76
2,500.00 2,221.80 0.00 404.67 278.20
55,000.00 17,946.35 2,087.92 1,872.91 37,053.65
200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00
8,200.00 451113 491.61 499,29 3,688.87
5,000.00 7,319.45 238.38 341.19 (2,319.45)
500.00 87.37 15.22 1.83 412.63
2,000.00 1,112.07 0.00 156.02 887.93
1,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00
947,605.00 722,922.09 18,548.97 8,991.75 224,682.91
0.00 1,318.00 0.00 0.00 (1,318.00)
1,000.00 253.19 0.00 0.00 746.81
139,714.00 139,713.60 0.00 0.00 0.40
600,377.00 400,251.28 50,031.41 50,031.41 200,125.72
0.00 451.75 0.00 0.00 (451.75)
14,400.00 8,702.00 1,087.75 1,087.75 5,698.00
8,000.00 4,974.32 621.79 621.79 3,025.68
1,250.00 1,250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
12,000.00 11,485.00 1,000.00 2,075.00 515.00
5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00
11,000.00 10,375.00 0.00 0.00 625.00
1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
1,800.00 1,656.50 0.00 0.00 143.50
1,200.00 1,056.98 0.00 0.00 143.02
300.00 2,384.00 0.00 18.00 (2,084.00)
0.00 (15,468.00) 0.00 (15,468.00) 15,468.00
0.00 31,268.65 0.00 0.00 (31,268.65)
43,424.00 28,948.48 3,618.56 3,618.56 14,475.52
26,167.00 16,788.24 2,097.28 2,097.28 9,378.76
800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 800.00
0.00 5,600.00 0.00 0.00 (5,600.00)
0.00 83,700.75 0.00 13,969.20 (83,700.75)
25,000.00 16,200.00 0.00 0.00 8,800.00
0.00 25,374.57 1,421.56 3,141.89 (25,374.57)
20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
15,000.00 16,653.04 2,081.63 2,081.63 (1,653.04)
74,000.00 48,734.56 6,091.82 6,091.82 25,265.44
4,773.00 3,181.76 397.72 397.72 1,591.24
0.00 38,701.90 0.00 5,275.90 (38,701.90)
0.00 2,493.89 0.00 673.13 (2,493.89)
0.00 21,724.78 2,583.60 3,875.40 (21,724.78)
0.00 2,280.30 0.00 0.00 (2,280.30)
200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00
1,006,405.00 930,054.54 71,033.12 79,588.48 76,350.46
947,605.00 722,922.09 18,548.97 8,991.75 224,682.91
1,006,405.00 930,054.54 71,033.12 79,588.48 76,350.46
(58,800.00) (207,132.45) $ (52,484.15) (70,596.73) 148,332.45

For Intern_5_Jse Only



JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Income Statement for the Eight Month Period Ending May 31, 2020

Unrestricted Income

Revenues

Application & Process Fees
RCI Annual CD Fund

Bond Admin Fee
PILOT/Sale Leaseback Fees
Fee Income - RLF Program
Fee Income - Micro Program
Interest Income
Miscellaneous Income

FTZ Fees

Total Revenues

Expenses
Operations

Office Expense

RCI Fee Sharing

Admin Services Exp

Electric Service

D&O Insurance

Commercial Insurance

FTZ Expense

Legal - Unrestricted

Legal Corp Park

Accounting & Auditing
Consultants

Coffeen Park Taxes

Airport Park Taxes

Fees Expense

City/County Parking Lot Fund
Insurance

Building Depreciation

146 Arsena Equip. Depreciatio
146 Arsenal Electric

146 Arsenal Water

Salary Expense

Consultants

Miscellaneous - Unrestricted
Landscaping

Security

Plowing 146 Arsenal

IDA 146 Arsenal Bldg Expense

Total Operations

Total Income
Total Expenses

Profit (Loss)

Current Year-to-Da Current Previous
Year te Total Month Month
Budget
3,000.00 3,520.00 $ 0.00 0.00
279,427.00 279,427.20 0.00 0.00
3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00
518,017.00 358,050.00 10,000.00 0.00
43,424.00 28,948.48 3,618.56 3,618.56
26,137.00 16,778.24 2,097.28 2,097.28
2,500.00 2,221.80 0.00 404.67
2,000.00 1,112.07 0.00 156.02
1,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
878,705.00 693,057.79 15,715.84 6,276.53
1,000.00 253.19 0.00 0.00
139,714.00 139,713.60 0.00 0.00
600,377.00 400,251.28 50,031.41 50,031.41
0.00 451.75 0.00 0.00
14,400.00 8,702.00 1,087.75 1,087.75
8,000.00 4,974.32 621.79 621.79
1,250.00 1,250.00 0.00 0.00
12,000.00 11,485.00 1,000.00 2,075.00
5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
11,000.00 10,375.00 0.00 0.00
1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1,800.00 1,656.50 0.00 0.00
1,200.00 1,056.98 0.00 0.00
300.00 2,384.00 0.00 18.00
20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00
15,000.00 16,653.04 2,081.63 2,081.63
74,000.00 48,734.56 6,091.82 6,091.82
4,773.00 3,181.76 397.72 397.72
0.00 38,701.90 0.00 5,275.90
0.00 2,493.89 0.00 673.13
0.00 21,724.78 2,583.60 3,875.40
0.00 2,280.30 0.00 0.00
200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 5,600.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 83,700.75 0.00 13,969.20
25,000.00 16,200.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 25,374.57 1,421.56 3,141.89
936,014.00 867,199.17 65,317.28 89,340.64
878,705.00 693,057.79 15,715.84 6,276.53
936,014.00 867,199.17 65,317.28 89,340.64
(57,309.00) (174,141.38) $ (49,601.44) (83,064.11)

For Inter_ 6_Jse Only

Page: 1

% YTD of
Budget

117.33
100.00
100.00
69.12
66.66
64.19
88.87
55.60
0.00

78.87

25.32
100.00
66.67
0.00
60.43
62.18
100.00
95.71
0.00
94.32
0.00
92.03
88.08
794.67
100.00
111.02
65.86
66.66
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
64.80
0.00

92.65

78.87
92.65

303.86



JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
146 Arsenal Expenses for the Eight Month Period Ending May 31, 2020

Prepared by Lyle Eaton

Expenses

Landscaping
Security

Plowing 146 Arsenal
IDA 146 Arsenal Bldg Expens
City/County Parking Lot Fund

Insurance

Building Depreciation

146 Arsena Equip. Depreciati
146 Arsenal Electric

146 Arsenal Water

Salary Expense

Consultants

Total Expenses

Current Year-to-Da Current Previous
Year te Total Month Month
Budget
0.00 5,600.00 $ 0.00 0.00
0.00 83,700.75 0.00 13,969.20
25,000.00 16,200.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 25,374.57 1,421.56 3,141.89
20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00
15,000.00 16,653.04 2,081.63 2,081.63
74,000.00 48,734.56 6,091.82 6,091.82
4,773.00 3,181.76 397.72 397.72
0.00 38,701.90 0.00 5,275.90
0.00 2,493.89 0.00 673.13
0.00 21,724.78 2,583.60 3,875.40
0.00 2,280.30 0.00 0.00
138,773.00 28464555 % 12,576.33 35,506.69

For Interr_ 7._se Only

% YTD of
Budget

0.00
0.00
64.80
0.00
100.00
111.02
65.86
66.66
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

2056.12



Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Balance Sheet

May 31, 2020
ASSETS

Current Assets

General Checking 176,452.22
Savings Account 1,056,745.30
Microenterprise Account 90,545.28
City Loan Account 144,787.76
Revolving Loan Fund Account 3,705,032.43
PILOT Monies Receivable 59,675.94
Acct Receivable - Rogers 20,559.25
RLF Loans Receivable 730,813.81
Microenterprise Loans Rec. 256,307.88
Watn. Economic Growth Fund Rec 137,141.61

Allowance for Bad Debt-RLF
Allow. for Bad Debts-MICRO
Prepaid Expense

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment
Accum Depr - Building
Accum Depr. Equipment

Total Property and Equipment

Other Assets

IT Server

Galaxy Tablets

Corp. Park Improvements
Airport Property

WIP Airport

Woolworth Building

146 Ars Building Improvements
WIP Arsenal Deck & Sidewalks

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

PILOT Monies Payable

Due HUD - RLF Interest

Due HUD - MICRO Interest

Due HUD - CITY Loan Interest
Maintenance Reserve Convergys
Maintenance Expense Convergys
Car Freshner Signage

Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities

Due NYS/IAP L.T.
Deferred Revenue - Rogers

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

(275,325.05)
(30,641.75)
15,614.80

(1,184,494.40)
(186,953.11)

6,050.00
13,366.00
209,995.14
884,326.02
108,206.78
505,000.00
1,233,689.56
11,000.00

$

6,087,709.48

(1,371,447.51)

2,971,633.50

7,687,895.47

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

59,675.94
3,056.62
4.69

1.15
14,445.48
25,927.57
11,000.00

180,159.78
20,716.44

114,111.45

200,876.22

314,987.67

Unaudited - For Man _ 8 _1ent Purposes Only



Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Balance Sheet

May 31, 2020
Capital
General Fund Bal - Unrestrict. 1,503,830.67
Fund Bal - RLF Restricted 4,419,309.27
Fund Bal - Micro Restricted 414,850.76
Fund Bal - City Restricted 262,489.22
Cap. Impr. Convergys 979,560.33
Net Income (207,132.45)
Total Capital 7,372,907.80
Total Liabilities & Capital $ 7,687,895.47

Unaudited - For Man: 9 _1ent Purposes Only



5/27/20 at 09:20:42.59

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From May 1, 2020 to May 31, 2020

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Date. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Page: 1

Date Check# AccountID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

5/1/20 7259 200001 Invoice: 20-05 1,000.00
100001 BARCLAY DAMON LLP 1,000.00

5/1/20 7260 200001 Invoice: 2020-41 50,031.41
100001 JEFF COUNTY LDC 50,031.41

5/1/20 7261 200001 Invoice: 2020-8 1,250.00
100001 WATERTOWN INDUSTRIAL CENTER 1,250.00

5/7/20 7262 200001 Invoice: 10009296 13,969.20
100001 ALLIED UNIVERSAL SECURITY SERVICES 13,969.20

5/7/120 7263 200001 Invoice: 20-323 4,476.50
100001 BERNIER, CARR & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 4,476.50

5/7/20 7264 200001 Invoice: 000011 268.89

200001 Invoice: 1851 4-30-20 43.37
100001 CITY COMPTROLLER 312.26

5/7/20 7265 200001 Invoice: 42720 4,919.28
100001 NATIONAL GRID 4,919.28

517120 7266 200001 Invoice: 4-9-20 CONCENTRIX 625.00
100001 SERV-PRO OF JEFFERSON 625.00

5/7120 7267 200001 Invoice: 0448-3 69.15
100001 WASTE MANAGEMENT 69.15

5/13/20 7268 200001 Invoice: 5069460 1,075.00
100001 BARCLAY DAMON LLP 1,075.00

5/13/20 7269 200001 Invoice: 5/20 MAIN ST 22.02
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 22.02

5/13/20 7270 200001 Invoice: 2266 1,291.80
100001 JEFF COUNTY LDC 1,291.80

5/13/20 7271 200001 Invoice: 5/20 MAIN ST 22.03
100001 SACKETS HARBOR LDC 22.03

5/15/20 7272 202001 RERMIT COR SEWER DISTRICT 28,050.00

2020--P&L

100001 TOWN OF WATERTOWN 28,050.00

5/20/20 7273 200001 Invoice: 51020 171.56
100001 WESTELCOM 171.56

5/28/20 7274 200001 Invoice: 92019073. 372.00
100001 ABJ FIRE PROTECTION CO 372.00

5/28/20 7275 200001 Invoice: 2269 1,291.80
100001 JEFF COUNTY LDC 1,291.80
Total 108,949.01 108,949.01

-10-



5/27/20 at 09:21:49.87

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency

General Checking Cash Receipts Journal

For the Period From May 1, 2020 to May 31, 2020
Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Date. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Page: 1

Date Account ID Transaction Line Description Debit Amnt Credit Amnt

5/6/20 125001 1216 Invoice: 3497 2,097.28
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 2,097.28

5/6/20 125001 2170 Invoice: 3496 3,618.56
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 3,618.56

5/13/20 207005 1291 5/20 INTEREST 22.02

205602 5/20 INTEREST 22.03
100001 MAIN STREET CRAFTS & DRAFTS 44,05

5/20/20 125001 10779 Invoice: 3500 2,500.00
100001 GSPP 24658 CR 47 NORTH 2,500.00

5/20/20 125001 10779 Invoice: 3501 2,500.00
100001 GSPP 24658 CR 47 SOUTH LLC 2,500.00

5/20/20 125001 000270 Invoice: 3499 2,500.00
100001 OYA WAYSIDE DRIVE, LLC 2,500.00

5/20/20 125001 000271 Invoice: 3498 2,500.00
100001 OYA ROBINSON ROAD LLC 2,500.00

15,759.89 15,759.89

“11-




5/27/20 at 09:23:08.70 Page: 1
Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Micro Loans Receivable
As of May 31, 2020

Filter Criteria includes: 1) Includes Drop Shipments. Report order is by ID. Report is printed in Summary Format.

Customer Amount Due
ABOVE REALITY SPORTS COMPLEX 35,225.34
COLLEEN'S CHERRY TREE INN 34,950.54
R.L.GOULD & SON, LLC 32,580.10
THOUSAND ISLANDS AREA HABITAT FOR HUMA 26,477.79
MAIN STREET CRAFTS & DRAFTS 5,284.62
MEDICAL GAS TECHNOLOGIES 1,500.25
PAINFULL ACRES 30,393.58
RC SPOT, LLC 11,075.61
DAN B SAMPSON i 14,501.54
THE SANDWICH BAR 15,570.69
SARAH'S BARBER SHOP 9,852.96
THE SCRUB HUB 11,726.83
SERV-PRO 6,402.98
SACKETS HARBOR TRADING CO. 1,128.38
TASTE OF DESIGN 19,636.67

256,307.88

-3



5/27/20 at 09:23:46.14 Page: 1

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Revolving Loan Fund Receivables
As of May 31, 2020

Filter Criteria includes: 1) Includes Drop Shipments. Report order is by ID. Report is printed in Summary Format.

Customer Amount Due
BENCHMARK FAMILY SERVICES 147,222.96
MEADOWBROOK TERRACE 83,571.46
MLR,LLC 108,693.81
RBM MANUFACTURING CORP 200,000.00
WRIGHT BROS. LLC 191,325.58

730,813.81

-if3-



5/27/20 at 09:24:07.73
Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Watn. Economic Growth Fund
As of May 31, 2020

Filter Criteria includes: 1) Includes Drop Shipments. Report order is by [D. Report is printed in Summary Format.

Page: 1

Customer Amount Due
CURRENT APPLICATIONS 137,141.61

137,141.61

-14-



5/27/20 at 09:24:49.65 Page: 1

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
PILOT Receivables
As of May 31, 2020
Filter Criteria includes: 1) Includes Drop Shipments. Report order is by ID. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Customer ID Invoice/CM 0-30 31-60 61-90 Over 90 days Amount Due
Customer

Bill To Contact

Telephone 1

ARC FEWTRNOO1, LLC 3474 43,438.72 43,436.72

ARC FEWTRNOQO1, LLC

ARC FEWTRNO0O1, LLC 43,436.72 43,436.72
ARC FEWTRNOO1, LLC

CDG 3502 6,382.81 6,382.81
CARTHAGE DEV. GROUP, L.P.

315-493-4404

CDG 6,382.81 6,382.81
CARTHAGE DEV. GROUP, L.P.

CONVERGYS 3419 9,856.41 9,856.41
CONVERGYS CORPORATION

00406-001 CONVERGYS LEASE

CONVERGYS 9,856.41 9,856.41
CONVERGYS CORPORATION

Report Total 6,382.81 53,293.13 59,675.94

-15-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

Revolving Loan Fund Receivables

May 31, 2020
Original Current Current
Recipient Date Issued Amount Balance Status Purpose of Loan
1|Benchmark Family Services January-03|  326,000.00] 147,222.96] Current [Build Specialized Daycare/Nursery
2|RBM Manufacturing November-19| 200,000.00| 200,000.00] Current |Working Capital
3|Meadowbrook Terrace August-12]  250,000.00| 83,571.46 Current  |Working Cap During Construction
4|MLR, LLC July-07| 250,000.00] 108,693.81 Current  |Expand Warehouse
50|Wright Bros, LLC June-12| 241,743.00| 191,325.58 Current  |Purchase Building
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
Total RLF Receivables 1,267,743.00| 730,813.81

accounting-jcidafolder

_16-




Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
MICRO Loan Fund Receivables

May 31, 2020
Original Current Current
Recipient Date Issued Amount Balance Status Purpose of Loan
1]Above Reality Sports Complex May-19 40,000.00] 35,225.34| Current |Open VR Sports Complex
2|Colleens Cherry Tree Inn May-19 40,000.00 34,950.54 Current Expand Restaurant - Ice Ceram Shop
3|R. L. Gould & Son, LLC March-19 40,000.00 32,580.10 Current |Open UPS Store
4TI Area Habitat For Humanity April-18 40,000.00f 26,477.79] Current |Open ReStore
5[Main Street Crafts & Drafts Sep-18 7,150.00 5,284.62 Current  |Craft Shop & Bar
6[Medical Gas Technologies Jun-15 40,000.00 1,500.25 Current  |Service Medical Gas Systems
7|Painfull Acres Mar-18 40,000.00 30,393.58 Current  [Amish Furniture Store
8|RC Spot, LLC Mar-16 50,015.47 11,075.61 Current  |Craft Brewery & Restaurant
9|Dan B. Sampson Il Mar-18 30,000.00| 14,501.54 Current  [Smoothie Bar
10| The Sandwich Bar Feb-19 19,000.00 15,570.69 Current  |Restaurant
11|Sarahs Barber Shop Mar-20 10,000.00 9,852.96 Current  |Barber Shop
12|The Scrub Hub Apr-18 18,656.00 11,726.83 Current  |Scrubs Clothing
13|Serv-Pro Jan-17 20,000.00 6,402.98 Current  |Water/Fire Damage Clean Up
14]Sackets Harbor Trading Company Jan-06 40,000.00 1,128.38 Current  |Retail Local Products
15| Taste of Design Apr-07 40,000.00 19,636.67 Current |Coffee Shop
18 :
19
20
21
22
23
24
Total RLF Receivables 474,821.4'7' 256,307.88 -

accounting-jcidafolder

-17-



May 31, 2020

Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
City Loan Fund Receivables

Recipient

Date Issued

Original
Amount

Current
Balance

Current
Status

Purpose of Loan

Current Applications

Apr-15

101,403.00

84,624.80

Current

Manufacturing Plant Expansion

Jan-16

150,000.00

52,516.81

Current

Purchase CNC Equipment

Current Applications

0.00

251,403.00 137,141.61 -

Total RLF Receivables

accounting-jcidafolder

-18-



PRESENTATION TO PLANNING/ZONING BOARD FOR ENERGY STORAGE
Planning and Zoning Form

The New York State Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA) developed the first
comprehensive set of guidelines for reviewing and evaluating battery energy storage systems. The Battery
Energy Storage System Guidebook helps municipalities develop a battery energy storage system permitting
and inspection processes to ensure efficiency, transparency, and safety in their communities. Municipalities
can download the New York Battery Energy Storage System Guidebook at https://www.nyserda.nv.gov/All-
Programs/Programs/Clean-Energy-Siting/Batterv-Energy-Storage-Guidebook.

NYSERDA offers continuing free technical assistance to local governments to help implement the best
practices outlined in the Battery Energy Storage System Guidebook. Municipalities interested in free technical
assistance may reach out to the NYSERDA Clean Energy Siting Team at cleanenerqgvhelp@nyserda.ny.qov.

NYSERDA respectfully requests that the municipality sign a copy of this form acknowledging receipt of the
below information as part of the Applicant's presentation to the Planning/Zoning Board.

Company Name: OYA Solar NY, L.P.

Contact Name: Yogesh Kumar Title: ‘ Project Manager

Email Address: Yogesh.kumar@ovasolar.com Telephone Number: | 4168403358X156
(NS oject Iriformation. SR
Project Name: OYA Robinson Road

Project Address: 18600 Robinson Road, Orfeans, NY 13624

Energy Storage Size, MW (AC): 5

Energy Storage Technology Type: Battery

Solar Project Size, MW (DC) (if applicable): | 7.5

Municipality Name: | Town of Orleans
Contact Name: Lee Shimel Title: Zoning Enforcement Officer
Email Address: orleanszoningofficer@amail.com Telephone Number: | 3156582057

ACKNOWLEDGED & CONFIRMED BY MUNICIPALITY Planning/Zoning Board Member

,»5,’/1’“’ \?’/%;m = /// L& C/’—//F

Signature Date
Lee Shimel Zoning Enforcement Officer
Print Name Title

AUGUST 2019
-19-



Full Environmental Assessntent Forn
Part I - Profect and Setting

Instructions for Completing Part 1

Part 1 is to be completed by the applicant or project sponsor. Responses become part of the application for approval or funding,
are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification,

Complete Part [ based on information currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to
any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on current information; indicate whether missing information does not exist,
or is not reasonably available to the sponsor; and, when possible, generally describe work or studies which would be necessary to

update or fully develop that information,

Applicants/sponsors must complete all items in Sections A & B. In Sections C, D & E, most items contain an initial question that
must be answered either *“Yes” or “No”. If the answer to the initial question is “Yes”, complete the sub-questions that follow. Ifthe
answer to the initial question is “No”, proceed to the next question. Section F allows the project sponsor to identify and attach any
additional information. Section G requires the name and signature of the applicant or project sponsor to verify that the information
contained in Part lis accurate and complete.

A. Project and Applicant/Sponsor Information.

Name of Action or Project:
OYA Robinson Road Orleans
Project Location (describe, and attach a general location map):

18600 Robinson Road, Clayton, New York 13624

Brief Description of Proposed Action (include purpose or need):

The proposed project would consist of (1) 5,000 kW AC, 7498 kW DC solar array with on-site storage on approximately 160 acres in the Town of Orleans.
Work includes general site preparation, brush removal, accass road, ground mounted solar array using drilled or driven piles, electric equipment, electric
transmission lines, battery storage, and other equipment as necessary for the installation.

Name of Applicant/Sponsor: Telephone: g6y 284-7950
OYA Solar NY, LP “Mail*
oar E-Mail: yogesh.kumar@oyasolar.com

Addressi 54 vy 4o spreet

City/PO: New York State: New York Zip Code: 10018

Project Contact (if not same as sponsar; give name and title/role): Telephone: (315) 783-6384

Robert Campany, Consulting Engineer E-Mail: fic@fourthcoast.com

Address:

745 Graves Street

City/PO: State; Zip Code:
Clayton New Yark 13624

Property Owner (if not same as sponsor); Telephoue:

Harold Garnsey E-Mail:

Address:

18600 Robinson Road

City/PO: ; i ;
uty/ O Claton S o Vork Zip Codel 30,

Page 1 of 13

-20-



. =

B. Government Approvals

B. Government Approvals, Funding, or Sponsorship. (“Funding” includes grants, Joans, tax relicf, and any other forms of financial

assistance,)

Government Entity If Yes: [dentify Agency and Approval(s) Application Date
Required (Actual or projected)

a. City Counsel, Town Board, [JYesiZ]No

or Village Board of Trustees ,
b. City, Town or Village EIYesTINo | rown site plan review July 2018

Planning Board or Commission
c. City, Town or [CIYesEZINo

Village Zoning Board of Appeals
d. Other local agencies [Yesk/INo
e. County agencies [JYeskZINo
f. Regional agencies [TYestZiNo
g. State agencies MlYesTINo  [nys DEC, NYS OPRHP, NYSERDA T8D
h. Federal agencies EYes[INo  |us Army Corps of Engineers, US Fish and Wildlife | TBD

{. Coastal Resources.

i. Is the project site within a Coastal Area, or the waterfront area of a Designated Inland Waterway? [CJYesiZNo
if. Isthe project site located in a community with an approved Local Waterfront Revitalization Program? [ YesbZINo
iii. Is the project site within a Coastal Erosion Hazard Area? [ YestZINo
C. Planning and Zoning
C.1. Planning and zoning actions.
Will administrative or legislative adoption, or amendment of a plan, local law, ordinance, rule or regulation be the [1YesEZINo
only approval(s) which must be granted to enable the propased action to proceed?
* IfYes, complete sections C, F and G.
* IfNo, proceed to question C.2 and complete all remaining sections and questions in Part |
C.2. Adopted land use plans.
a. Do any municipally- adopted (city, town, village or county) comprehensive land use plan(s) include the site [IYeskZINo
where the proposed action would be located?
If Yes, does the comprehensive plan include specific recommendations for the site where the proposed action [CIYesIINo
would be located?
b. Is the site of the proposed action within any local or regional special planning district (for example: Greenway; [dYeshZINo
Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA); designated Slate or Federal heritage area; watershed management plan;
or other?)
[f Yes, identify the plan(s):
[dYesi/INo

c. Is the proposed action located wholly or partially within an arca listed in an adopted municipal open space plan,
or an adopted municipal farmland protection plan?
If Yes, identify the plan(s);

Page 2 of 13

-21-




C3. Zoning

a. Is the site of the proposed action located in a municipality with an adopted zoning law or ordinance. &1 Yes[_INo
If Yes, what is the zoning classification(s) including any applicable overlay district?
Agricullure and rural residence

b. Is the use permitted or allowed by a special or conditional use permit? 1 YesJNo
¢. [s a zoning change requested as part of the proposed action? COYeskZINo
If Yes,

i. What is the proposed new zoning for the site?

C.4, Existing community services.

a. In what school district is the project site located? Thousand Islands Central Schoof District and LaFargeville Central Schaol Dislrict

b. What police or other public protection forces serve the project site?

NYS Troopers. Jefferson County Sherilf

c. Which fire protection and emergency medical services scrve the project site?
Thousand Islands Emergency Rescue Service, Fishers Landing Volunteer Fire Depanment

d. What parks serve the project site?
Mone.

D. Project Details

D.1. Proposed and Potential Development

a. What is the general nature of the proposed action (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial, recreational; it mixed, include all
components)? Commercial

b. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? . 160.26 acres
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? 80.13 acres
¢. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned
or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? 160.26 acres
c. Is the proposed action an expansion of an existing project or use? 1 YeskZINo
i. If Yes, what is the approximate percentage of the proposed expansion and identify the units (e.g., acres, miles, housing units,
square feet)? % Units:
d. Is the proposed action a subdivision, or does it include a subdivision? [JYesEZINo
If Yes,

i. Purpose or type of subdivision? (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial; if mixed, specify types)

ii. Is a cluster/conservation layout proposed? [OYes[INo
ifi. Number of lots proposed?
iv. Minimumn and maximum proposed lot sizes? Minimum Maximum

e. Will the proposed action be constructed in multiplc phases? OYeskZINo
i. If No, anticipated period of construction: 18 months
if. If Yes:
»  Total number of phases anticipated e
* Anticipated commencement date of phase 1 (including demolition) month year

* Anticipated completion date of final phase month year

»  Generally describe connections or relationships among phases, including any contingerncies where progress of one phase may
determine timing or duration of future phases:

Page 3 of 13

20




YeskINo

f. Does the project include new residential uses?
If Yes, show numbers of units proposed.

One Family Two Family Three Family Multiple Family (four or more)

Initial Phase -
At completion

of alf phases
g. Docs the proposed action include new non-residential construction (including expansions)? 1Yes[INo
If Yes,

i. Total number of structures _see attached

ii. Dimensions (in feet) of largest proposed structure; height; width; and length
ili. Approximate extent of building space to be heated or cooled: 0 square feet
h. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that will result it the impoundment of any [Yesl/No

liquids, such as creation of a water supply, reservoir, pond, lake, waste lagoon or other storage?

[f Yes,

i. Purpose of the impoundment:
it. If a water impoundment, the principal source of the water: [ Ground water [[ISurface water streams [ JOther specify:

ifi, If other than water, identify the type of impounded/contained liquids and their source.

fv. Approximate size of the proposed impoundment. Volume: _ million gallons; surface area: acres

v. Dimensions of the proposed dam or impounding structure: height; length
vi. Construction method/materials for the proposed dam or tmpounding structure (e.g., earth fill, rock, wood, concrete):

D.2. Project Operations

a. Does the proposed action include any excavation, mining, or dredging, during construction, operations, or both? [ Yesi/INo
(Not including general site preparation, grading or installation of utilities or foundations where all excavated
materials will remain onsite)
If Yes:
i . What is the purpose of the excavation or dredging?
ii. How much material (including rock, carth, sediments, etc.) is proposed to be remaved from the site?
¢ Volume (specify tons or cubic yards): o

o Over what duration of time? .
iti. Describe nature and characteristics of materials to be cxcavated or dredged, and plans to use, manage or dispose of them.

iv. Will there be onsite dewatering or processing of excavated materials? [JYes[ INo
If yes, describe,

v. What is the total arca to be dredged or cxcavated? acres
acres

vi. What is the maximum area to be worked at any one time?

vii. What would be the maximum depth of excavation or dredging? feet

viii. Will the excavation require blasting? [Yes[JNo
ix. Summarize site reclamation goals and plan:

b. Would the proposed action cause or result in alteration of, increase or decrease in size of, or encroachment [T Yest/INo
into any existing wetland, waterbody, shoreline, beach or adjacent area?

If Yes:
i. Identify the wetland or waterbody which would be affected (by name, water index number, wetland map number or geographic

description):

Page 4 of 13

-23-




)
i
i
1
i
'
|
i

it. Describe how the proposed action would affect that waterbody or wetland, e.g. excavation, fill, placement of structures, or
alteration of chaunels, banks and shorelines. Indicate extent of activities, alterations and additions in square feet or acres:

fit. Will the proposed action cause or result in disturbance to bottom sediments? [Yes[CINo
If Yes, describe:
fv. Will the proposed action cause or result in the destruction or removal of aquatic vegeration? [JYes[INo
If Yes;
¢ acres of aquatic vegetation proposed to be removed;
*  expected acreage of aquatic vegetation remaining after project completion;
°  purpose of proposed removal (e.g. beach clearing, invasive species control, boat access):
¢ proposed method of plant removal:
¢ if chemicalherbicide treatment will be used, specify product(s):
v. Describe any proposed reclamation/mitigation foltowing disturbance:
¢. Will the proposed action use, or create a new demand for water? [JYes[ZINo
If Yes:
i. Total anticipated water usage/demand per day: gallons/day
ii. Will the proposed action obtain water from an existing public water supply? [Iyes[INo
[f Yes:
*  Name of district or service area:
*  Does the existing public water supply have capacity to serve the proposal? [C1Yes[INo
* Is the project site in the existing district? CdvYes[INo
¢ [s expansion of the district needed? (OYes[INo
* Do existing lines serve the project site? . [(dYes[INo
iit. Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to supply the project? [IYes[No
If Yes:
*  Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:
o Source(s) of supply for the district:
iv. Is a new water supply district or scrvice area proposed to be formed to serve the project site? [ Yes[INo

If, Yes:

¢ Applicant/sponsor for new district;
*  Date application submitted or anticipated:

©  Proposed source(s) of supply for new district:

v. If a public water supply will not be used, describe plans to provide water supply for the project:

vi. If water supply will be from wells (public or private), what is the maximum pumping capacity:

gallons/minute,

d. Will the proposed action generate liquid wastes?
If Yes:
L. Total anticipated liquid waste generation per day: gallons/day

[dYeskZINo

ii. Nature of liquid wastes to be generated (e.g., sanitary wastewater, industrial; if combination, describe all components and

approximate volumes or propertions of each):

i

. Will the proposed action use any existing public wastewater treatment facilities? [JYes[[No
If Yes:
*  Name of wastewater (reatment plant to be used:
s Name of district:
¢ Does the existing wastewater treatment plant have capacity to serve the project? [JYes[No
*  Isthe praject site in the existing district? CYes[INo
o s expansion of the district needed? CYes[JNo

Page 50f 13

_24-




° Do existing sewer lines serve the project site?

OYes[ONo

If Yes:
¢ Applicant/sponsor for new district:

*  Will a line extension within an existing district be necessary to serve the project? OYes[INo
If Yes:
*» Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:
iv. Will 2 new wastewater (sewage) treatment district be formed to serve the project site? OYesONo

»  Date application submitted or anticipated:

. What is the receiving water for the wastewater discharge?

receiving water (name and classification if surface discharge or describe subsurface disposal plans):

v. Ifpublic facilities will not be used, describe plans to provide wastewater treatment for the project, including specifying proposed

vi. Describe any plans or designs to capture, recycle or reuse liquid waste:

&. Will the proposed action disturb morc than one acre and create stormwater runioff, either from new point
sources (i.e. ditches, pipes, swales, curbs, gutters or other concentrated flows of stormwater) or non-point
source (i.e. sheet flow) during construction or post construction?
If Yes:
£. How much impervious surface will the project create in relation to total size of project parcel?
Square feet or acres (impervious surface)
Square feet or _42.45 acres (parcel size)
ii. Describe types of new point sources.Runoff from solar panels

[Z1Yes[JNo

groundwater, on-site surface water or off-site surface waters)?
Groundwaler via swales and ditches.

iii. Where will the stormwater runoff be directed {i.e. on-site stormwater management facility/structures, adjacent properties,

*  Ifto surface waters, identify receiving water bodies or wetlands:

i. Is the project site located in an Air quality non-attainment area? (Area routinely or periodically fails to meet
ambient air quality standards for all or some parts of the year)
if, In addition to emissions as calculated in the application, the project will generate:
. Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide (CO,)
L Tonsf/year (short tons) of Nitrous Oxide (N.0)
L Tons/year (short tons) of Perfluorocarbons (PFCs)
° Tons/year (short tons) of Sulfur Hexafluoride (SF¢)
° Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide equivalent of Hydroflourocarbons (HFCs)

. Tons/year (short tons) of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

*  Will stormwater runofft flow to adjacent properties? L Yes[JNo
iv. Dogs the proposed plan minimize impervious surfaces, use pervious materials or collect and re-use stormwater? [] YesiZ] No
f. Does the proposcd action include, or will it use on-sitc, one or more sources of air emissions, including fuel [JYesi/INo
combustion, waste incineration, or other processes or operations?
If Yes, identify:
i, Mobile sources during project operations (e.g., heavy equipment, fleet or delivery vehicles)
if. Stationary sources during construction (e.g., power generation, structural heating, batch plant, crushers)
ifi, Stationary sources during operations (c.g., process emissions, large boilers, electric generation)
g. Will any air emission sources named in D.2.f {above), require a NY State Air Registration, Air Facility Permit,  [JYesiZINo
or Federal Clean Air Act Title IV or Title V Permit?
If Yes;
[ves[INo

Page 6 of 13

05




h. Will the proposed action generate or emit mcthane (including, but not limited to, sewage treatment plants, [JYesi/INo
landfills, composting facilities)? :
If Yes:
i. Estimate methane generation in tons/year (metric);
if. Describe any methane capture, contral or elimination measures included in project design (e.g., combustion to generate heat or

electricity, flaring):

i. Will the proposed action result in the release of air pollutants from open-air operations or processes, such as [Jyesi/INo

quarry or landfill operations?
If Yes: Describe operations and nature of emissions (e.g., diesel exhaust, rock particulates/dust):

J- Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels or generate substantial [Yesi/INo
new demand for transportation facilities or services?
If Yes:
i. When is the peak traffic expected (Check all that apply):  [JMoming [J Evening [OWecekend
[ Randomly between hours of to

it. For commercial activities only, projected number of truck trips/day and type (e.g., semi trailers and dump trucks):

iii. Parking spaces:  Existing Proposed Net increase/decrease

iv. Does the proposed action include any shared use parking? OvesThvo
v. 1f the proposed action includes any modification of cxisting roads, creation of new roads or change in existing access, describe:

vi. Are public/private transportation service(s) or facilities available within 4 mile of the proposed site? [TYes[JNo
vii Will the proposed action include access to public transportation or accommodations for use of hybrid, electric  []Yes[ ]No

or other alternative fueled vehicles?
viti. Will the proposed action include plans for pedestrian or bicycle accommedations for connections 1o existing  [JYes[|No

pedestrian or bicycle routes?

k. Will the proposed action (for commercial or industrial projects only) generate new or additional demand 1 Yes[JNo

for energy?
If Yes:

i. Estimate annual electricity demand during operation of the proposed action:
5,000 kW AC, 7.488 kW DC

ii. Anticipated sources/suppliers of electricity for the project (e.g., on-site combustion, on-site renewable, via grid/local utility, or
other):
On-sile renewable

iii. Will the proposed action require a new, or an upgrade, to an existing substation? [Yesf/INo

L. Hours of operation. Answer all itenis which apply.

i. During Construction: i, During Operations:
*  Monday - Friday: 6 am lo 6 pm o Monday - Friday: 24 hours
e Saturday: not applicable o Saturday: 24 hours
¢  Sunday; nol applicable s Sunday: 24 hours
* Holidays: not applicable o Holidays: 24 hours
Page 7of 13

-26-



m. Will the proposed action produce noise that will exceed existing ambient noise levels during construction, 21 Yes(INo
operation, or both?
If yes:
i. Provide details including sources, time of day and duration:
6 am to 6 pm ducina construction (Monday - Fridav) due to use of heavy machinerv.

ii. 'Will the proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a noise barrier or screen? CIYestINo
Describe:

n. Will the proposed action have outdoor lighting? OYesZINo

If yes:

i. Describe source(s), focation(s), height of fixture(s), direction/aim, and proximity to nearest oceupied structures:

if. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a light barrier or screen? LlvesLINo
Describe:
0. Does the proposed action have the potential to produce odors for more than one hour per day? {JYesi/INo

If Yes, describe possible sources, potential frequency and duration of odor emissians, and proximity to nearest
occupied structures:

p. Will the proposed action include any bulk storage of petroleum (combined capacity of over 1,100 gallons) O YesiZINo
or chemical products 185 gallons in above ground storage or any amount in underground storage?

If Yes:
i. Product(s) to be stored

ii. Volume(s) per unit time (e.g., month, year)
iii. Generally, describe the proposed storage facilities:

q. Will the proposed action (commercial, industrial and recreational projects only) use pesticides (i.e., herbicides, [ Yes (ZINo

insecticides) during construction or operation?
If Yes:
i. Describe proposed treatment(s):

fi. Will the praposed action use Integrated Pest Management Practices? [ Yes [INo

t. Will the proposed action (commercial or industrial projects only) involve or require the management or disposal [ Yes IZ]No
of solid waste (excluding hazardous matcrials)?

If Yes:
i. Describe any solid waste(s) to be generated during construction or eperation of the facility:
o Construction: tons per (unit of time)
¢ QOperation : tons per (unit of time)

il. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of materials (o avoid disposal as solid waste:
*  Construction:

s  Operation:

iii. Proposed disposal methods/facilities for solid waste generated on-site:
o Construction:

e  Operation;

Page 8 of 13

_07-



s. Does the proposed action include construction or modification of a solid waste management facility? [ Yes i/l No

If Yes:
i. Type of management or handling ol waste proposed for the site (e-g., recycling or transfer station, composting, landfitl, or

other disposal activities):.

ii. Anticipated rate of disposal/processing:
. Tons/month, if transfer or other non-combustion/thermal treatment, or

o Tons/hour, if combustion or thermal treatment
ifi. If landfill, anticipated site life: years
t. Will the proposed action at the site involve the commercial generation, treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous[ | Yesi/]No
waste?
If Yes:

i. Name(s) of all hazardous wastes or constituents to be generated, handled or managed at facility:

if. Generally describe processes or activities involving hazardous wastes or constituents:

iii. Specify amount to be handled or generated tons/month
iv. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of hazardous constituents:

v. Will any hazardous wastes be disposed at an existing offsite hazardous wasle facility? LIyest_ INo
If Yes: provide name and location of facility:

[f No: describe proposed management of any hazardous wastes which will not be sent to a hazardous waste fac] lity:

L

E. Site and Setting of Proposed Action

E.L. Land uses on and surrounding the project site

a. Existing land uses.
L. Check all uses that occur on, adjoining aud near the project site.
§4 Urban [ Industrial [ Commercial ] Residential (suburban) [ Rural (non-farm)
[J Forest 7] Agriculture ] Aquatic Other (specify); Vacant
ii. If mix of uses, generally describe:

b. Land uses and covertypes on the project site.

Land use or Current Acreage After Change
Covertype Acreage Project Completion {Acres +-)
e Roads, buildings, and other paved or impervious
surfaces 0 f *
o Forested 53 53 0
. Me?dows, grgsslanfls or brushlands (r}on— 107 64 43
agricultural, including abandoned agricultural)
e Agricultural 0 0 0
(includes active archards, field, greenhouse etc.)
*  Surface water features
. 0 0 a
(lakes, ponds, streams, rivers, etc.)
¢ Wetlands (freshwater or tidal) 0 0 0
»  Noun-vegetated (bare rock, earth or fill) 0 0 0
s Other
Describe: Solar panel sudaces 0 42 +42

Page 9 of 13

_08-



¢. Is the project site presently used by members of the community for public recreation? U vesZINo
L If Yes: explain:

d. Are there any facilities serving children, the elderly, people with disabilities (e.g., schools, hospitals, licensed OYes/INo
day care centers, or group homes) within 1500 feet of the project site?

If Yes,
i. [dentify Facilities:

e. Does the project site contain an existing dam? [ Yest/INo
If Yes:
i Dimensions of the dam and impoundment:
e Dam height: feet
s Dam length: feet
s Surface area: acres
o Volume impounded: gallons OR acre-feet

ii, Dam's existing hazard classification:

fil. Provide date and summarize results of last inspection:

f. Has the project site ever been used as a municipal, commercial or industrial solid waste management facility, [ YesZINo
or does the project site adjoin property which is now, or was at one time, used as a solid waste management facility?

If Yes:
i. Has the facility been formally closed? [TYes 1 No

s Ifyes, cite sources/documentation:

i1. Describe the location of the project site relative to the boundaries of the solid waste management facility:

iit. Describe any development constraints due to the prior solid waste activities:

8. Have hazardous wastes been generated, treated and/or disposed of at the site, or does the project site adjoin CYestZINo
property which is now or was at one time used to commercially treat, store and/or dispose of hazardous waste?

If Yes:
i. Describe waste(s) handled and waste managemeut activities, including approximate time when activities occurred:

h. Potential contamination history. Has there been a reported spill at the proposed project site, or have any CTvestZt No
remedial actions been conducted at or adjacent to the proposed site?
If Yes:
i. Is any portion of the site listed on the NYSDEC Spills Incidents database or Environmental Site vesCINo
Remediation database? Check all that apply:
[ Yes — Spills Incidents database Provide DEC ID number(s):
{7 Yes — Environmental Site Remediation database Provide DEC [D number(s):

[J Neither database

ii. If site has been subject of RCRA corrective activities, describe control measures:

iii. Is the project within 2000 feet of any site in the NYSDEC Environmental Site Remediation database? [dveshZINo
[fyes, provide DEC ID number(s):

iv. Ifyes to (i), (ii) or (iii) above, describe current status of site(s):

Page 10 0of 13

29



v. Is the project site subject to an institutional control limiting property uses?
e Ifyes, DEC site [D number:

[Jyes[INo

e Describe the type of institutional control (e.g., deed restriction or easement):

*  Describe any use limitations:

®  Describe any engineering controls:
e Will the project affect the institutional or engineering controls in place? [dYes[No
¢ Explain:
E.2. Natural Resources On or Near Project Site
a. What is the average depth to bedrock on the project site? o 2.7 feet
b. Are there bedrock outcroppings on the project site? /1Yes[ INo
If Yes, what proportion of the site is comprised of bedrock outcroppings? 1%
¢. Predominant soil type(s) present on project site: Chaumont silty clay 4519%
Wilpoinl silly clay foam 214 %
Collamer silt loam 9.3%
d. What is the average depth to the water table on the project site? Average: 1.25 feet
e. Drainage status of project site soils:{_] Well Drained: % of site
/] Moderatzly Well Drained: 38% of site
2] Poorly Drained 62 9% of site
f. Approximate proportion of proposed action site with slopes: [/] 0-10%: 100 % of site
] 10-15%: _% of site
[ 15% or greater: % of site
g. Are there any unique geologic features on the projcct site? [ Yesl/INo
If Yes, describe:
h. Surface water features.
i. Does any portion of the project site contain wetlands or other waterbodies (including streams, rivers, B Yes[INo
ponds or lakes)?
ii. Do any wetlands or other waterbodies adjoin the praject site? iYes[JNo
If Yes to either i or i, continue. If No, skip to E.2.1.
iii. Are any of the wetlands or waterbodies within or adjoining the project site regulated by any federal, &YesTINo
state or local agency?
iv. For each identified regulated wetland and waterbody on the project site, provide the following information:
o  Streams: Name Classification
© LakesorPonds: Name Classification
o Wetlands: Name Federal Waters, Federat Waters, Federal Walers Approximate Size
®  Wetland No. (if regulated by DEC)
v. Are any of the above water bodies listed in the most recent compilation of NYS water quality-impaired CIvesfZiNo
waterbodies?
If yes, name of impaired water body/bodies and basis for listing as impaired:
i. Is the project site in a designated Floodway? [YesfZINo
J- Is the project site in the 100-year Floodplain? {[JYesk/INo
k. Is the project site in the 500-year Floodplain? [YesiZNo
CJyesiZINo

. Is the project site located over, or immediately adjoining, a primary, principal or sole source aquifer?

If Yes:
i, Name of aquifer:

Page 11 of 13

-30-




m. Identify the predominant wildlife species that oceupy or use the project site:

Small mammats, birds, repiles,

amghibians

n. Does the project site contain a designated significant natural community?

IfYes:
i. Describe the habitat/community (composition, function, and basis for designation):

[ Yesk/INo

if. Source(s) of description or evaluation:

iif. Extent of community/habitat:
*  Currently: acres
* Following completion of project as proposed: acres
o Gain or loss (indicate + or -): acres

0. Does project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by the federal govermment or NYS as

endangered or threatened, or does it contain any areas identified as habitat for an endangered or threatened species?

Tf Yes:
i. Species and listing (endangered or threatened);

71 Yes[No

?

Blanding's Turile, Indiana Bat (endangered), and Northern Long-eared Bat (threatened)

p. Does the project site contain any species of plant or animal that s listed by NYS as rare, or as a species of
special concemn?

{t'Yes:
i. Species and listing:

[ Yesi/INo

q. Is the project site or adjoining area currently used for hunting, trapping, fishing or shell fishing?
If yes, give a brief description of how the proposed action may affect that use:

[ YesfZINo

E.3. Designated Public Resources On or Near Project Site

a. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in a designated agricultural district certified pursuant to
Agriculture and Markets Law, Article 25-AA, Section 303 and 3047
If Yes, provide county plus district name/number: JEFF002

[ Yes{INo

b. Are agricultural lands consisting of highly productive soils present?
i. If Yes: acreage(s) on project site? 109

(7] Yes[ INo

#. Source(s) of soil rating(s): NYS Department of Agriculture & Markets

¢. Does the project site contain all or part of, or is it substantially contiguous to, a registered National
Natural Landmark?
If Yes:
i, Nature of the natural landmark: [ Biological Community ] Geological Feature
ii. Provide brief description of landmark, including values behind designation and approximate size/extent;

[JYesEZINo

d. Is the project site located in or does it adjoin a state listed Critical Environmental Area?
If Yes:
i. CEA name:

[JYeskZINo

ii. Basis for designation:

ifi. Designating agency and date:

" Page 12 0f 13

-31-




e. Does the project site conlain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district [ YestZI No
which is listed on the National or State Register of Histaric Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner of the NYS
Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation (o be eligible for listing on the State Register of Historic Places?

If Yes:

i Nature of historic/archaeclogical resource: [Archaeological Site {JHistoric Building or District
ii. Name:

iti. Brief description of attributes on which listing is based:

£ Ts the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for OYesk/INo
archaeological sites on the N'Y State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

#. Have additional archacological or historic site(s) or resources been identified on the project site? [OYeskNo

If Yes:

L. Describe possible resource(s):

ii, Basis for identification:

h. Ts the project site within fives miles of any officially designated and publicly accessible federal, state, or local [OyesfZINo

scenic or aesthetic resource?
If Yes:
i. Identify resource:

if. Nature of, or basis for, designation (e.g., established highway overlook, state or local park, state historic trail or scenic byway,
ete.):

iif. Distance between project and resource; miles.

L Is the project site located within a designated river corridor under the Wild, Scenic and Recreational Rivers [ YesZINo
Program 6 NYCRR 666?

If Yes:
. Identify the name of the river and its designation:

if. Is the activity consistent with development restrictions contained in 6NYCRR Part 6667 [JYes[INo

F. Additionzal Information
Attach any additional information which may be needed to clarify your project.

If you have identified any adverse impacts which could be associated with your proposal, please describe those impacts plus any
measures which you propose to avoid or minimize them.

G. Verification
I'certify that the information provided is true to the best of my knowledge.

Applicant/Sponsor Name QYA Solar NV, LP, Date G- 'q‘{j - 19

Signature 7“’,\/‘/\ /L/] Title Clﬁ&"yr: Oyﬁm}(’ﬂh(*} Offtean
LY 1 I [k

| PRINT FORM Page 13 of 13

30



Agency Use Only [If applicable]

Full Environmental Assessment Form Project : |
Part 2 - Identification of Potential Project Impacts  Dae: | ]

~..Part 2 is to be completed by the lead agency. Part 2 is designed to help the lead agency inventory all potential resources that could
»e affected by a proposed project or action. We recognize that the lead agency’s reviewer(s) will not necessarily be environmental
professionals. So, the questions are designed to walk a reviewer through the assessment process by providing a series of questions that
can be answered using the information found in Part 1. To further assist the lead agency in comipleting Part 2, the form identifies the
most relevant questions in Part 1 that will provide the information needed to answer the Part 2 question, When Part 2 is completed, the

lead agency will have identified the relevant environmental areas that may be impacted by the proposed activity.

If the lead agency is a state agency and the action is in any Coastal Area, complete the Coastal Assessment Form before proceeding
with this assessment.

Tips for completing Part 2:

* Review all of the information provided in Part 1.

*  Review any application, maps, supporting materials and the Full EAF Workbook.

e Answer each of the 18 questions in Part 2.

o Ifyou answer “Yes” to a numbered question, please complete all the questions that follow in that section.

¢ Ifyou answer “No” to a numbered question, move on to the next numbered question.

°  Check appropriate column to indicate the anticipated size of the impact.

*  Proposed projects that would exceed a numeric threshold contained in a question should result in the reviewing agency
checking the box “Moderate to large impact may occur.”

»  The reviewer is not expected to be an expert in environmental analysis.

¢ Ifyou are not sure or undecided about the size of an impact, it may help to review the sub-questions for the general
question and consult the workbook,

°  When answering a question consider all components of the proposed activity, that is, the “whole action”,

o Consider the possibility for long-term and cumulative impacts as well as direct impacts.

® Answer the question in a reasonable manner considering the scale and context of the project. ;
1. Impacton Land ;
Proposed action may involve construction on, or physical alteration of, [Ino YES
the land surface of the proposed site. (See Part 1. D.1) ‘
If "Yes", answer questions a - j. If “No”, move on to Section 2.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may eccur oceur
a. The proposed action may involve construction on land where depth to water table is E2d 0
less than 3 feet. ,
b. The proposed action may involve construction on slopes of 15% or greater. E2f m/ ]
¢. The proposed action may involve construction on land where bedrock is exposed, or E2a M O
generally within 5 feet of existing ground surface. i
d. The proposed action may involve the excavation and removal of more than 1,000 tons | D2a % |
of natural material, /
e. The proposed action may involve construction that continues for more than one year Dle )Xj M|
or in multiple phases. p
f. The proposed action may result in increased erosion, whether from physical D2e, D2q %( g
disturbance or vegetation removal (including from treatment by herbicides). /
g. The proposed action is, or may be, located within a Coastal Erosion hazard area, Bli IZ( [
h. Other impacts: O

Page 1 of 10

-33-



(‘..

2. Impact on Geological FFeatures
The proposed action may result in the modification or destruction of, or inhibit
access to, any unique or unusual land forms on the site (e.g., cliffs, dunes, [JYES
minerals, fossils, caves). (See Part 1. E.2.g)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - c. If “"No”, move on to Section 3.
Relevant No, or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may oceur occur
a. Identify the specific land form(s) attached: E2g O O
b. The proposed action may affect or is adjacent to a geological feature listed as a E3c O O
registered National Natural Landmark.
Specific feature:
c. Other impacts: | O
3. Impacts on Surface Water
The proposed action may affect one or more wetlands or other surface water (INo YES
bodies (e.g., streams, rivers, ponds or lakes). (See Part 1. D.2, E.2.h)
If “Yes"” answer questions a - 1. If “No", move on to Section 4.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur oceur
a. The proposed action may create a new water body. D2b, D1h ]
— v
b. The proposed action may result in an increase or decrease of over 10% or more than a | P2b % |
10 acre increase or decrease in the surface area of any body of water.
c. The proposed action may involve dredging more than 100 cubic yards of material D2a }a/ ]
from a wetland or water body. ,.
d. The proposed action may involve construction within or adjoining a freshwater or E2h /4 O
tidal wetland, or in the bed or banks of any other water body. 5
e. The proposed action may create turbidity in a waterbody, either from upland erosion, | D2a, D2h p{ O
runoff or by disturbing bottom sediments. .
f. The proposed action may include construction of one or more intake(s) for withdrawal | D2c b{ O
of water from surface water. /
g. The proposed action may include construction of one or more outfall(s) for discharge | D2d ﬁ/ |
of wastewater to surface water(s). z
h. The proposed action may cause soil erosion, or otherwise create a source of D2e )X( 1
stormwater discharge that may lead to siltation or other degradation of receiving !
water bodies. /
i. The proposed action may affect the water quality of any water bodies within or E2h ﬁ 0
downstream of the site of the proposed action, /
J- The proposed action may involve the application of pesticides or herbicides in or D2q, E2h ;X{ O
around any water body. ' /
k. The proposed action may require the construction of new, or expansion of existing, Dla, D2d ]
—-|  wastewater treatment facilities.

Page 2 of 10

~34-



1. Other impacts: ] ]
‘4. Impact on groundwater
The proposed action may result in new or additional use of ground water, or [Ino YES
may have the potential to introduce contaminants to ground water or an aquifer.
(See Part 1. D.2.a, D.2.c, D.2.d, D.2.p,D.2.q,D.2.t)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h. If “No", move on to Section 5.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact | impact may
may ocguy oceur
a. The proposed action may require new water supply wells, or create additional demand | D2¢ }4 ad
on supplies from existing water supply wells.
b. Water supply demand from the proposed action may exceed safe and sustainable D2c K 1
withdrawal capacity rate of the local supply or aquifer. ’
Cite Source:
¢. The proposed action may allow or result in residential uses in areas without water and Dla, D2c }Z( 0
sewer services.
d. The proposed action may include or require wastewater discharged to groundwater. D2d, E2I N\ 0
e. The proposed action may result in the construction of water supply wells in locations | D2c, EIf, K ]
where groundwater is, or is suspected to be, contaminated. Elg, Elh S
f. The proposed action may require the bulk storage of petroleum or chemical products | D2p, E2] /& ) a
over ground water or an aquifer. -
g. The proposed action may involve the commercial application of pesticides within 100 | E2h, D2q, %\ O
feet of potable drinking water or irrigation sources. E2l, D2¢
h. Other impacts: Gs._,.'_.lnjnm, g 4‘&,. A SWoe ] O
! 3 T
/
S. Impact on Flooding
The proposed action may result in development on lands subject to flooding. NO JvEs
(See Part 1. E.2)
If "Yes", answer questions a - 2. If "No", move on to Section 6.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur oceur
a. The proposed action may result in development in a designated floodway. E2i 0 4
b. The proposed action may result in development within a 100 year floodplain. E2j O [l
c. The proposed action may result in development within a 500 year floodplain. E2k O ]
d. The proposed action may result in, or require, modification of existing drainage D2b, DZe (W] |
patterns,
e. The proposed action may change flood water flows that contribute to flooding. D2b, E2i, [1 |
E2j, E2k
; £. Ifthere is a dam located on the site of the proposed action, is the dam in need of repair, | Ele [
~~ _orupgrade?

Page 3 of 10

-35-




e

\__..»l

g. Other impacts: 0 O
Impacts on Air
The proposed action may include a state regulated air emission source. NO L__]YES
(See Part 1. D.2.f,, D,2,h, D.2.g)
If "Yes”, answer questions a-f. If “No”, move on to Section 7.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. If the proposed action requires federal or state air emission permits, the action may
also emit one or more greenhouse gases at or above the following levels:
i. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide (CO,) D2g ] O
ii. More than 3.5 tons/year of nitrous oxide (N,0) D2g O 0
iii. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon equivalent of perfluorocarbons (PFCs) D2g a B
iv. More than .045 tons/year of sulfur hexafluoride (SFq) D2g E 0
v. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide equivalent of D2g
hydrochloroflourocarbons (HFCs) emissions
vi. 43 tons/year or more of methane D2h (] 0
b. The proposed action may generate 10 tons/year or more of any one designated D2g O i
hazardous air pollutant, or 25 tons/year or more of any combination of such hazardous
air pollutants.
c. The proposed action may require a state air registration, or may produce an emissions | D2f, D2g 0 ]
rate of total contaminants that may exceed 5 Ibs. per hour, or may include a heat
source capable of producing more than 10 million BTU's per hour.
d. The proposed action may reach 50% of any of the thresholds in “a” through “c”, D2g | O
above.
e. The proposed action may result in the combustion or thermal treatment of more than | | D2s 0] O
ton of refuse per hour.
f. Other impacts: O |
7. Impact on Plants and Aunimals
The proposed action may result in a loss of flora or fauna. (See Part I. E.2. m.-q.) [JNo YES
If “Yes”, answer questions a - j. If “No", move on to Section 8. ’
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may cause reduction in population or loss of individuals of any E2o )X{ (]
threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the Federal
government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.
b. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by E2o T;( 0
any rare, threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the federal
government. s
c. The proposed action may cause reduction in population, or loss of individuals, of any | E2p ‘7( 0
species of special concern or conservation need, as listed by New York State or the
Federal government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.
d. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by E2p ;|
any species of special concern and conservation need, as listed by New York State or
the Federal government.

Page 4 of 10

-36-



h. Other impacts:

¢. The proposed action may diminish the capacity of a registered National Natural E3c p}( (W]
Landmark to support the biological community it was established to protect. ey
f. The proposed action may result in the removal of, or ground disturbance in, any E2n \Zﬁ O
portion of a designated significant natural community.
Source:
y
g- The proposed action may substantially interfere with nesting/breeding, foraging, or
i ) . . Lo E2m O
over-wintering habitat for the predominant species that occupy or use the project site.
h. The proposed action requires the conversion of more than 10 acres of forest, Elb g O
grassland or any other regionally or locally important habitat.
Habitat type & information source:
/
i. Proposed action (commercial, industrial or recreational projects, only) involves use of | D2q ?4 0
herbicides or pesticides.
j. Other impacts: O [l
8. Impact on Agricultural Resources
The proposed action may impact agricultural resources. (See Part 1. E.3.a. and b.) [No YES
If "Yes", answer questions a - h. If “No, move on to Section 9.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Partl small to large
Question(s) impact | impact may
may oceur occur
a. The proposed action may impact soil classified within soil graup | through 4 of the E2c, E3b )Z( g
NYS Land Classification System. /
b. The proposed action may sever, cross or otherwise limit access to agricultural land Ela, Elb }Z( B a
(includes cropland, hayfields, pasture, vineyard, orchard, etc). /
¢. The proposed action may result in the excavation or compaction of the soil profile of | E3b }é 0
active agricultural land,
d. The proposed action may irreversibly convert agricultural land to non-agricultural Elb, E3a % O
uses, either more than 2.5 acres if located in an Agricultural District, or more than 10
acres if not within an Agricultural District. .
e. The proposed action may disrupt or prevent installation of an agricultural land Ela, Elb ﬁ a
management system. ;
f. The proposed action may result, directly or indirectly, in increased development C2c, C3, ?( O
potential or pressure on farmland. D2¢, D2d
8. The proposed project is not consistent with the adopted municipal Farmland C2c \g( 0
Protection Plan.
O O

Page 5 0f 10

-37-




9. Impact on Aesthetic Resources
The land use of the proposed action are obviously different from, or are in NO [JYES
sharp contrast to, current land use patterns between the proposed project and
a scenic or aesthetic resource. (Part 1. E.| .4, E.1.Lb, E3.h)
If “Yes", answer questions a - g. If "No", go to Section 10.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Partl small tolarge
Question(s) impact | impact may
may occur occur
a. Proposed action may be visible from any officially designated federal, state, or local E3hb d O
scenic or aesthetic resource.
b. The proposed action may result in the obstruction, elimination or significant E3h, C2b O O
screening of one or more officially designated scenic views.
¢. The proposed action may be visible from publicly accessible vantage points: E3h
i. Seasonally (e.g., screened by summer foliage, but visible during other seasons) d O
ii. Year round 0 0
d. The situation or activity in which viewers are engaged while viewing the proposed E3h
action is: E2q
i. Routine travel by residents, including travel to and from work ’ ) 0
ii. Recreational or tourism based activities Ele | |
e. The proposed action may cause a diminishment of the public enjoyment and E3h 1 (W
appreciation of the designated aesthetic resource.
£. There are similar projects visible within the following distance of the proposed Dla, Ela, [} 0O
project: Dif, Dlg
0-1/2 mile
Y2 -3 mile
3-5 mile
5+ mile
g. Other impacts: O O

10. Impact on Historic and Archeological Resources
The proposed action may occur in or adjacent to a historic or archaeological
resource, (Part 1. E3.e, f. and g.)

If "Yes", answer questions a - e. If "No", go to Section 11,

o

[ ]YEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur

a. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3e O O

to, any buildings, archaeological site or district which is listed on or has been

nominated by the NYS Board of Historic Preservation for inclusion on the State or

National Register of Historic Places.
b. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3f (] O

to, an area designated as sensitive for archaeological sites on the N'Y State Historic

Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory.
c. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3g O 0O

to, an archaeological site not included on the NY SHPO inventory.

Source:

Page 6 of 10

-38-



d. Other impacts: J 0
l e. [fany of the above (a-d) are answered “Yes”, continue with the following questions
to help support conclusions in Part 3:
i. The proposed action may result in the destruction or alteration of all or part E3e, E3g, ] ]
of the site or property. E3f
ii. The proposed action may result in the alteration of the property’s setting or E3e, E3f, I [
integrity. E3g, Ela,
Elb
iii. The proposed action may result in the introduction of visual elements which E3e, E3f, 0 0
are out of character with the site or property, or may alter its setting. E3g, E3h,
C2,C3
I1. Impact on Open Space and Recreation
The proposed action may result in a loss of recreational opportunities or a NO DYES
reduction of an open space resource as designated in any adopted
municipal open space plan.
(See Part 1. C.2.c, E.l.c., E.2.q.)
If “Yes” answer questions a-e. If “No", go to Section 12.
Relevant No, or Maderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may result in an impairment of natural functions, or “ecosystem | D2e, E1b O ]
services”, provided by an undeveloped area, including but not limited to stormwater | E2h,
storage, nutrient cycling, wildlife habitat. E2m, E2o0,
E2n, E2p
b. The proposed action may result in the loss of a current or future recreational resource. | C2a, Elc, ] O
C2¢, E2q
¢. The proposed action may eliminate open space or recreational resource in an area C2a, C2c ] (d
with few such resources. Elc, E2q
d. The proposed action may result in loss of an arca now used informally by the C2c, Elc 1 O
community as an open space resource.
e. Other impacts: [ (]
7
12. Impact on Critical Environmental Areas
The proposed action may be located within or adjacent to a critical NO D YES
environmental area (CEA). (See Part 1. E.3.d)
If “Yes", answer questions a- ¢. If “No", go to Section 13.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part 1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quantity of the resource or E3d ] ]
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.
b. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quality of the resource or E3d O M|
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.
c. Other impacts: ] O

Page 7 of 10

-39-




13. Impact on Transportation N .

The proposed action may result in a change to existing transportation systems. pHNo YES

(See Part 1. D.2.,j)

If “Yes", answer questions a - g. If “No™”, go to Section 14,

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur oceur
a. Projected traffic increase may exceed capacity of existing road network. D2j E J
b. The proposed action may result in the construction of paved parking area for 500 or D2j ;Z( 0
more vehicles,
c. The proposed action will degrade existing transit access. Dzj E( d
d. The proposed action will degrade existing pedestrian or bicycle accommodations. DZj D}‘/ [
¢. The proposed action may alter the present pattern of movement of people or goods, D2j ]Z{ 1
)

f. Other impacts: O [

14. Impact on Energy

The proposed action may cause an increase in the use of any form of energy.

(See Part 1. D.2.k)
If "Yes", answer questions a- e, If “No”, go to Section 15.

[Ino

XYES —[

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may oceur occur

a. The proposed action will require a new, or an upprade to an existing, substation. D2k ﬁ O
b. The proposed action wil| require the creation or extension of an energy transmission DIf, - 0

or supply system to serve more than 50 single or two-family residences or to serve a Dlq, D2k

commercial or industrial use,
c. The proposed action may utilize more than 2,500 MWhrs per year of electricity. D2k ]ﬁ/ O
d. The proposed action may involve heating and/or cooling of more than 100,000 square | Dlg ‘ﬁ O

feet of building area when completed.
€. Other Impacts:

P O 0

15. Impact on Noise, Odor, and Light

The proposed action may result in an increase in noise, odors, or outdoor lighting.

(See Part 1. D.2.m., n., and 0.)
If "Yes” answer questions a - f. If “"No”, go to Section 16.

[ Jno

c. The proposed action may result in routine odors for more than one hour per day.

Relevant No, or Modcrate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impac impact may
may ogeur occur
a. The proposed action may produce sound above noise levels established by local D2m 0
regulation,
b. The proposed action may result in blasting within 1,500 feet of any residence, D2m, Eld ?{ [
hospital, school, licensed day care center, or nursing home. v
D2o }Z{

Page 8 of 10

_40-



d. The proposed action may result in light shining onto adjoining properties. D2n IZ( [
e. The proposed action may result in lighting creating sky-glow brighter than existing D2n, Ela }Z( O
area conditions.
f. Other impacts: | O
16. Impact on Human Health .
The proposed action may have an impact on human health from exposure NO E]YES
to new or existing sources of contaminants. (See Part 1.LD.2q,E.l.d.f.g.andh) -
If "Yes", answer questions a-m, If "No" go to Section 17.
Relevant No,or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may cecur occur
a, The proposed action is located within 1500 feet of a school, hospital, licensed day Eld | |
care center, group home, nursing home or retirement community.
b. The site of the proposed action is currently undergoing remediation. Elg, Elh 1
c. There is a completed emergency spill remediation, or a completed environmental site | Elg, Elh ] 0O
remediation on, or adjacent to, the site of the proposed action,
d. The site of the action is subject to an institutional control limiting the use of the Elg, Elh ] O
property (e.g., easement or deed restriction).
e. The proposed action may affect institutional control measures that were put in place Elg,Elh (] O
to ensure that the site remains protective of the environment and human health.
f. The proposed action has adequate control measures in place to ensure that future D2t | O
generation, treatment and/or disposal of hazardous wastes will be protective of the
environment and human health.
g The proposed action involves construction or modification of a solid waste D2q, EIf | 0
management facility.
h. The proposed action may result in the unearthing of solid or hazardous waste. D2q, EIf ] d
i. The proposed action may result in an increase in the rate of disposal, or processing, of | D2r, D2s ] (]
solid waste,
J- The proposed action may result in excavation or other disturbance within 2000 feet of | EIf,Elg 0 O
a site used for the disposal of solid or hazardous waste. Elh
k. The proposed action may result in the migration of explosive gases from a landfill EIf,Elg | O
site to adjacent off site structures.
l. The proposed action may result in the release of contaminated leachate from the D2s, E1f, O 1
project site. D2r
m. Other impacts: O 0

Page 9 of 10

-41-




p

17. Consistency with Community Plans ]
The proposed action is not consistent with adopted land use plans. NO DYES
(See Part 1. C.1, C.2. and C.3) '
If "Yes” answer questions a- h. If “No”, £o lo Section 18,
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part) small to large
Question(s) impatt impact may
may oceur oceur
a. The proposed action’s land use components may be different from, or in sharp C2,C3,Dla O O
contrast to, current surrounding land use pattern(s). Ela, Elb
b. The proposed action will cause the permanent population of the city, town or village | C2 0 O
in which the project is located to grow by more than 5%,
¢. The proposed action is inconsistent with local land use plans or zoning regulations, C2,C2,C3 (] ]
d. The proposed action is inconsistent with any County plans, or other regional land use | C2, C2 O 0
plans.
e. The proposed action may cause a change in the density of development that is not C3, DIg, O O
supported by existing infrastructure or is distant from existing infrastructure. D1d, DIf,
Dl1d, Eib
£. The proposed action is located in an area characterized by low density development C4, D2c, D2d a 0
that will require new or expanded public infrastructure. D2j
g- The proposed action may induce secondary development impacts (e.g., residential or | C2a O O
commercial development not included in the proposed action)
h. Other: 0 O
18. Consistency with Community Character
The proposed project is inconsistent with the existing community character. 0] DYES
(See Part 1. C.2, C3,D.2,E3)
If “Yes", answer questions a - g If “No", proceed to Part 3.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may replace or eliminate existing facilities, structures, or areas E3e, E3f, E3g (] O
of historic importance to the community.
b. The proposed action may create a demand for additional community services (e.g. C4 O a
schoals, police and fire)
c. The proposed action may displace affordable or low-income housing in an area where | C2, C3, DIf O O
there is a shortage of such housing. Dlg,Ela
d. The proposed action may interfere with the use or enjoyment of officially recognized | C2, E3 0
or designated public resources.
e. The proposed action is inconsistent with the predominant architectural scale and C2,C3 O
character,
f. Proposed action is inconsistent with the character of the existing natural landscape. C2,C3 ] O
Ela, Elb
E2g, E2h
g. Other impacts: O O

WUDRINT FULL FORM_] Page 10 of 10

-42-



Town of Orleans

PO Box 103
LaFargeville, New York 13656

“This institution is an equal opportunity provider and employer”

Supervisor . Zoning Officer
Kevin Rarick 658-4411 Lee Shimel
Town Clerk
Tammy Donnelly 658-9950 Town Counci
Highway Superintendent Gwen Kickby
Robby Black 658-9920 Peter Wilson
Town Assessor Mary Ford-Waterman
Dale Raymo 658-4309 Thomas Johnston
RESOLUTION

NEGATIVE DECLARATION (SEQRA) FOR SOLAR ENERGY

WHEREAS, THE Planning Board for the Town of Orleans, New York considered the application for a
Special Use Permit and Site Plan Approval under the Town’s Zoning Ordinance and the newly adopted
Solar Energy Law as submitted by OYA Solar NY, LP in connection with a Solar Energy Project referred to
as the Robinson Solar Energy Project;

WHEREAS, the Planning Board of the Town of Orleans reviewed a Long Form Environmental Assessment
Form with exhibits for the purpose of assisting the Planning Board in making a determination of
significance in respect to the Project and whether it might have a significant adverse impact on the
environment; and

WHEREAS, The Planning Board serves as Lead Agent and is performing a Coordinated Review after
having received consent from other involved Agencies. or where such Agencies did not respondtoa
Lead Agency request; and

"WHEREAS the Town has reviewed the Criteria for determining significance of tan action as set forth at 6
NYCRR 617.7.c and .

WHEREAS having considered the action and the potential for environmental impacts associated with
such action, the Planning Board has determined to proceed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Board of the Town of Orleans finds theat the
proposed action is subject to SEQR; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the action constitutes a Type 1 action under SEQR 617.4(b)(6)(i);and
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Planning Board of the Town of Orleans, New York:

1. Based upon the examination and consideration of the Long Environmental Assessment Form
and comparison of the proposed action and criteria set forth at 617.7, no adverse
environmental impacts have been identified, and the potential for limited impacts identified
have not been found to be significant.

2. The Planning Board Chair for the Town of Orleans is authorized to execute the Loong
Environmental Assessment Form to the effect that the Planning Board is issuing a “negative
Declaration” under SEQR

-43-



3. The Secretary/Clerk of the planning Board is hereby directed to file and circulate this
determination in accordance with the requirement for a Type [ action of the long Environmental
Assessment Form

4. A complete copy of the EAF including this negative declaration shall be maintained in the
Planning Boards file, and in the Town Clerks office in a file that will be readily accessible by the
Public. Further. The Secretary/Clerks office is hereby autharized to publish a notice to that effect
in the Environmental Notice Bulletin. All subsequent notice’s regarding the undertaking of the
project shall state that a negative declaration has been issued.

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

A motion was offered by Board Member Matt Duffany, seconded by Brian Eckert and upon roll call vote
was duly adopted as follows:

Chairman Chris LaBow, YES _X NO__ Absent ___
Matt Duffany YES _X NO ___ Absent __
Brian Eckert YES _X_ NO Absent ___
Donna Dutton YES _X_ NO__ Absent __
Damon Kirkby YES NO ___ Absent _X__

Dated 24 September 2019 %%

Christoﬁ@r LaBow, Chairman

-44-



Agency Use Only [IfApplicable}

Project :
Date:

Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 3 - Evaluation of the Magnitude and Importance of Project Impacts
and
Determination of Significance

Part 3 provides the reasons in support of the determination of significance. The lead agency must complete Part 3 for every question
in Part 2 where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where there is a need to explain why a particular
element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse environmental impact.

Based on the analysis in Part 3, the lead agency must decide whether to require an environmental impact statement to further assess
the proposed action or whether available information is sufficient for the lead agency to conclude that the proposed action will not
have a significant adverse environmental impact. By completing the certification on the next page, the lead agency can complete its

determination of significance.

Reasons Supporting This Determination:
To complete this section:

[Identify the impact based on the Part 2 responses and describe its magnitude. Magnitude considers factors such as severity,
size or extent of an impact.

*  Assessthe importance of the impact. Importance relates to the geographic scope, duration, probability of the impact
occurring, number of people affected by the impact and any additional environmental consequences if the impact were to
oceur.

°  The assessment should take into consideration any design element or project changes.

o Repeat this process for each Part 2 question where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where
there is a need to explain why a particular element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse
environmental impact.

*  Provide the reason(s) why the impact may, or will not, result in a significant adverse environmental impact

» For Conditional Negative Declarations identify the specific condition(s) imposed that will modify the proposed action so that
no significant adverse environmental impacts will result,

e Attach additional sheets, as needed.

Determination of Significance - Type 1 and Unlisted Actions

SEQR Status: 'ZT Type 1 l:l Unlisted

Identify portions of EAF completed for this Project: [ §Part 1 @{’art 2 /Pﬁ 3
_45-




’_Upon review of the information recorded on this EAF, as noted, plus this additional support information

and consiﬂ;;_ing both the magnitude and importance of each iq)entiﬁed potential impact, it is the conclusion of the
T L Arle e Q1 s o as lead agency that:

[E A. This project will result in no significant adverse impacts on the environment, and, therefore, an environmental impact
statement need not be prepared. Accordingly, this negative declaration is issued.

l_—_l B. Although this project could have a significant adverse impact on the environment, that impact will be avoided or
substantially mitigated because of the following conditions which will be required by the lead agency:

There will, therefore, be no significant adverse impacts from the project as conditioned, and, therefore, this conditioned negative
declaration is issued. A conditioned negative declaration may be used only for UNLISTED actions (see 6 NYCRR 617.d).

D C. This Project may result in one or more significant adverse impacts on the environment, and an environmental impact
Statement must be prepared to further assess the impact(s) and possible mitigation and to explore alternatives to avoid or reduce those
impacts. Accordingly, this positive declaration is issued.

Name of Action;

. ) L y
Name of Lead Agency: T S o O [eci,/ﬁ’, e Plann,y s B
’

Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: C/) s ‘Z’-ﬁ/;ﬂ’ /o 6"@

Title of Responsible Officer: C/t”samm “,‘ - 0‘-53 TS MP Or('&?hs p /L‘H]Vx-ﬁ:? ﬂa.aﬂui

Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: Date:

Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer) %Mﬁ}p /ﬁ?) Date: 7,27— /7
P 2 7 w i -

For Further Information:

=) :
Contact Person: £ e K4 e / _ )
Address: ﬁa Lo /03 La /L‘[{{?@"; /[_ AiH
278 S Er SOST
Telephone Number: 35 &
E-mail: ﬂ“”/?l?/,"s .//:577,;;? &FA’K/‘MJ‘ @ (?/974;,‘/ oo

For Type 1 Actions and Conditioned Negative Declarations, a copy of this Notice is sent to:

Chief Executive Officer of the political subdivision in which the action will be principally located (e.g., Town / City / Village of)
Other involved agencies (if any)

Applicant (if any)

Environmental Notice Bulletin: http://www.dec.ny.gov/enb/enb.html

PRINT FULL FORM Page 2 of 2

_46-



A meeting of Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was
convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 800 Starbuck Avenue in
the City of Watertown, Jefferson County, New York on June 4, 2020, at 9:00 o’clock am,,
local time.

ENVIRONMENTAL RESOLUTION

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman and, upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT:

The following resolution was offered by , seconded by , to

wit:
Resolution No. 06.04.2020.01

RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT ACTION TOWARD THE
ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND LEASING
OF A CERTAIN COMMERCIAL PROJECT FOR OYA ROBINSON
ROAD LLC (“OYA”) WILL NOT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT
ON THE ENVIRONMENT.

WHEREAS, Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 369 of the
1971 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 892-e of said General Municipal
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities,
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound
commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and

_47-



RAFT

economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more
“projects” (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed,
reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the
obligation to purchase; and

WHEREAS, OYA has presented an application (the “Application”) to the Agency, a
copy of which was presented at this meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of
the Agency, requesting that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “Project”)
consisting of the following: (A) (1) the acquisition of an interest in certain parcels of land
located in the Town of Orleans, to wit: tax parcels 13.00-2-47.1 and 13.00-2-32.1, Jefferson
County, New York (the “Land”), and (2) construction on the Land of a 5 megawatt solar
photo-voltaic community distribution generation facility (the “Facility”) to be operated by
the Company (the Land and the Facility collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”; (B)
the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of section 854(14) of the
Act) with respect to the foregoing, including exemption from certain real estate taxes (the
“Financial Assistance”); and (C) the lease with an obligation to purchase or sale of the
Project Facility to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company
and agreed upon by the Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Agency is a local agency pursuant to the New York State
Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQRA”), ECL Section 8-0101, et seq., and
implementing regulations, 6 NYCRR Part 617 (the “Regulations”); and

WHEREAS, undertaking the Project is an Action as defined by SEQRA; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Orleans conducted a coordinated review of the Project, and
although the Agency was not included as an involved agency in the review conducted by
the Town of Orleans, a complete copy of the Full Environmental Assessment Form
reviewed by the Town and of the environmental review proceedings conducted by the
Town of Orleans (the “EAF”) has been filed with the Agency and has been provided to the
members of the Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has considered the Project and the EAF, together with the
Agency’s knowledge of the area surrounding the Project, and such further information as is
available to the Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has reviewed the classifications of actions contained in the
Regulations; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has determined that the Action is a Type I Action, as that
term is defined in the Regulations, and that although the Agency was not included as an
involved agency in the coordinated review conducted by the Town of Orleans, the Agency

_48-



DRAFT

has reviewed the proceedings conducted by the Town of Orleans and the EAF and concurs
with the findings of the Town of Orleans that the Project will not result in a significant
environmental impact.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Project is a Type I Action pursuant to SEQRA.

Section 2. The Agency has reviewed the environmental review conducted by the
Town of Orleans and concurs with the findings of the Town of Orleans.

Section 3. The Project will not result in a significant adverse environmental
impact.

Section 4. Preparation of an Environmental Impact Statement is not required.

Section 5. The basis for this determination is set forth in Part 2 of the

Environmental Assessment Form, attached as Attachment A hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Section 6. A Negative Declaration of significant adverse environmental impact
shall be prepared, filed, distributed and published in accord with 6 NYCRR shall be filed at
the Agency as required by 6 NYCRR Section 617.12(b)(2).

Section 7. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on
roll call, which resulted as follows:

David J. Converse VOTING
John Jennings VOTING
Robert E. Aliasso, Jr. VOTING
W. Edward Walldroff VOTING
Paul Warneck VOTING
William Johnson VOTING
Lisa L'Huillier VOTING

(V5

-49-



The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. r F,?AFT

e i A

STATE OF NEW YORK )
)

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON SS.:

I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of the Jefferson County Industrial
Development Agency (the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the
foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the
Resolution contained therein, held on June 4, 2020, with the original thereof on file in my
office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of
such Resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related
to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the
Public Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general
public and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with
such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency
present through said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full
force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the
Agency this 4th day of June, 2020.

Donald C. Alexander
Chief Executive Officer

-50- 4



PRELIMINARY INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION

A meeting of Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") was

convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 800 Starbuck Avenue in

the City of Watertown, Jefferson County, New York on June 4, 2020 at 9:00 o'clock a.m.,,
local time.

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman and, upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT:

The following resolution was offered by , seconded by , to

wit:
Resolution No. 06.04.2020.02

RESOLUTION TAKING PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL ACTION
TOWARD THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION,
AND LEASING OF A CERTAIN COMMERCIAL PROJECT FOR OYA
ROBINSON ROAD LLC (THE “COMPANY”) AND AUTHORIZING
THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A PRELIMINARY
AGREEMENT WITH THE COMPANY WITH RESPECT TO SUCH
TRANSACTION.

WHEREAS, Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 369 of the
1971 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 892-e of said General Municipal
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the
"Act") to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities,
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound

-51-



DRAFT

commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more
"projects” (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed,
reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the
obligation to purchase; and

WHEREAS, OYA Robinson Road LLC (the “Company”) has presented an application
(the “Application”) to the Agency, a copy of which was presented at this meeting and copies
of which are on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the Agency consider
undertaking a project (the “Project”) consisting of the following: (A) (1) the acquisition of
an interest in certain parcels of land located in the Town of Orleans, to wit: tax parcels
13.00-2-47.1 and 13.00-2-32.1, Jefferson County, New York (the “Land”), and (2)
construction on the Land of a 5 megawatt solar photo-voltaic community distribution
generation facility (the “Facility”) to be operated by the Company (the Land and the Facility
collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”; (B) the granting of certain “financial
assistance” (within the meaning of section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the
foregoing, including exemption from certain real estate taxes (the “Financial Assistance”);
and (C) the lease with an obligation to purchase or sale of the Project Facility to the
Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by
the Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to
representations by the Company that (A) the granting by the Agency of the Financial
Assistance with respect to the Project will be an inducement to the Company to undertake
the Project in Jefferson County, New York, (B) the completion of the Project Facility will not
result in the removal of a plant or facility of the Company or any other proposed occupant
of the Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area of the State of
New York or in the abandonment of a plant or facility of any proposed occupant of the
Project Facility (other than the Company) located in the State of New York and (C) the
completion of the Project Facility will not result in the abandonment of one or more plants
or facilities of the Company located in the State of New York; and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to encourage the Company to preserve and advance
the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of
Jefferson County, New York by undertaking the Project in Jefferson County, New York; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter
43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act"), and the
regulations (the "Regulations") adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of
Environmental Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act,
"SEQRA"), by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on June 4, 2020 (the "SEQR
Resolution"), the Agency has determined that the Project will not have a significant effect

_52-



TN Y I i

|

| A58 b

on the environment and, therefore, that an environmental impact statement is not required
to be prepared with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, any approval of the Project contained herein is
contingent upon a determination by the members of the Agency to proceed with the Project
following satisfaction of the public hearing and notice requirements and other procedural
requirements contained in Section 859-a of the Act that relate to the Project; and

WHEREAS, although the resolution authorizing the Project has not yet been drafted
for approval by the Agency, a preliminary agreement (the "Preliminary Agreement")
relative to the proposed undertaking of the Project by the Agency has been presented for
approval by the Agency.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Agency has reviewed the Application and based upon the
representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Application and at this meeting
and, based thereon, the Agency hereby makes the following findings and determinations
with respect to the Project:

(A)  The Project constitutes a "project” within the meaning of the Act; and

(B)  The completion of the Project Facility will not result in the removal of
a plant or facility of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project
Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area of the State of New
York or in the abandonment of a plant or facility of any proposed occupant of the
Project Facility (other than the Company) located in the State of New York, and the
completion of the Project Facility will not result in the abandonment of one or more
plants or facilities of the Company located in the State of New York; and

(C)  The Project Facility will not constitute a project where facilities or
property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods or services to
customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third of the
total cost of the Project; and

(D}  The granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to
the Project, through the granting of the various tax exemptions described in Section
2(D) of this Resolution, will promote the job opportunities, health, general
prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Jefferson County, New York
and the State of New York and improve their standard of living, and thereby serve
the public purposes of the Act; and

(E) Upon compliance with the provisions of the Act, the Agency would
then be authorized under the Act to undertake the Project in order to promote the
job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the

-53-



| ¥

inhabitants of Jefferson County, New York and the State of New York and improve
their standard of living.

Section 2. If, following full compliance with the requirements of the Act, including
the public hearing requirements set forth in Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency adopts a
future resolution (the "Future Resolution") determining to proceed with the Project and to
grant the Financial Assistance with respect thereto and the Company complies with all
conditions set forth in the Preliminary Agreement and the Future Resolution, then the
Agency will (A) acquire an interest in the Project Facility from the Company pursuant to a
deed, lease agreement or other documentation to be negotiated between the Agency and
the Company (the "Acquisition Agreement"); (B) renovate the Facility and acquire and
install the Equipment in the Facility or elsewhere on the Land; (C) lease with the obligation
to purchase or sell the Project Facility to the Company pursuant to a lease agreement or an
installment sale agreement (hereinafter the "Project Agreement”) between the Agency and
the Company whereby the Company will be obligated, among other things, (1) to make
payments to the Agency in amounts and at times so that such payments will be adequate to
enable the Agency to timely pay all amounts due on the Acquisition Agreement and (2) to
pay all costs incurred by the Agency with respect to the Project and/or the Project Facility,
including all costs of operation and maintenance, all taxes and other governmental charges,
any required payments in lieu of taxes and the reasonable fees and expenses incurred by
the Agency with respect to or in connection with the Project and/or the Project Facility,
and (D) provide the Financial Assistance with respect to the Project, in accordance with the
Agency's uniform tax exemption policy, including exemption from real estate taxes (but not
including special assessments and special ad valorem levies) relating to the Project Facility,
subject to the obligation of the Company to make payments in lieu of taxes with respect to
the Project Facility, all as contemplated by the Preliminary Agreement and the Future
Resolution.

Section 3. If the Agency adopts the Future Resolution, the undertaking and
completing of the Project by the Agency, and the granting of the Financial Assistance with
respect to the Project as contemplated by Section 2 of this Resolution, shall be subject to:
(A) the determination by the members of the Agency to proceed with the Project following
a determination by the members of the Agency that all requirements of SEQRA that relate
to the Project have been fulfilled; (B) execution and delivery by the Company of the
Preliminary Agreement, which sets forth certain conditions for the undertaking and
completing of the Project by the Agency, and satisfaction by the Company of all the terms
and conditions of the Preliminary Agreement applicable to the Company; (C) agreement by
the Agency and the Company on mutually acceptable terms for the conveyance of the Land
to the Agency; (D) agreement between the Company and the Agency as to payment by the
Company of payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project Facility, together with the
administrative fee of the Agency with respect to the Project; (E) a determination by the
members of the Agency to proceed with the granting of the Financial Assistance with
respect to the Project following a determination by the members of the Agency that the
public hearing and notice requirements and other procedural requirements contained in
Section 859-a of the Act have been complied with; (F) the Agency's uniform tax exemption
policy or if any portion of the Financial Assistance to be granted by the Agency with respect

-54- 4



to the Project is not consistent with the Agency's uniform tax exemption policy, the Agency
must follow the procedures for deviation from such policy set forth in Section 874(b) of the
Act prior to granting such portion of the Financial Assistance; and (G) the following
additional condition(s): None.

Section 4. The form, terms and substance of the Preliminary Agreement (in
substantially the form presented to this meeting and attached hereto) are in all respects
approved, and the First Chairman or Vice Chairman, Executive Director or Deputy
Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute
and deliver said Preliminary Agreement in the name and on behalf of the Agency, said
Preliminary Agreement to be substantially in the form presented to this meeting, with such
changes therein as shall be approved by the officer executing same on behalf of the Agency,
the execution thereof by such officer to constitute conclusive evidence of such officer's
approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the form now before this meeting.

Section 5. From and after the execution and delivery of the Preliminary Agreement,
the officers, agents and employees of the Agency are hereby authorized, empowered and
directed to proceed with the undertakings provided for therein on the part of the Agency
and are further authorized to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents
as may be necessary or convenient to carry out and comply with the terms and provisions
of the Preliminary Agreement as executed.

Section 6. Joseph W. Russell, of the law firm of Barclay Damon LLP of Watertown,
New York is hereby appointed Counsel to the Agency with respect to all matters in
connection with the Project. Counsel for the Agency is hereby authorized, at the expense of
the Company, to work with the Company, counsel to the Company and others to prepare
for submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to effect the transactions
contemplated by this Resolution.

Section 7. The Agency hereby authorizes the Executive Director of the Agency,
prior to the granting of any Financial Assistance with respect to the Project, after
consultation with Counsel, (A) to establish a time, date and place for a public hearing of the
Agency to hear all persons interested in the location and nature of the Project Facility and
the proposed Financial Assistance being contemplated by the Agency with respect to the
Project, said public hearing to be held in the city, town or village where the Project Facility
will be located; (B) to cause notice of such public hearing to be given to the public by
publishing a notice of such hearing in a newspaper of general circulation available to
residents of the governmental units where the Project Facility is to be located, such notice
to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act and to be published no fewer
than ten (10) days prior to the date established for such public hearing; (C) to cause notice
of said public hearing to be given to the chief executive officer of the county and each city,
town, village and school district in which the Project Facility is or is to be located no fewer
than ten (10) days prior to the date established for said public hearing; (D) to conduct such
public hearing; and (E) to cause a report of said public hearing fairly summarizing the
views presented at said public hearing to be promptly prepared and cause copies of said
report to be made available to the members of the Agency.

-55- >



e 7 [
T 4 b 1S

§ ¢ i e f
£ i = !
. W a
E o 2 /. - -/ L. d.

Section 8. The First Chairman, Vice Chairman and Executive Director of the Agency
are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company
and to do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to
implement the provisions of this Resolution.

Section 9. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on
roll call, which resulted as follows:

David ]. Converse VOTING
[ohn Jennings VOTING
Robert E. Aliasso. Ir. VOTING
W. Edward Walldroff VOTING
Paul Warneck VOTING
William Johnson VOTING
Lisa I’Huillier VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) ss.:

I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of the Jefferson County Industrial
Development Agency (the "Agency"), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the
foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the
Resolution contained therein, held on June 4, 2020 with the original thereof on file in my
office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of
such Resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related
to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the
Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general
public and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with
such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency
present through said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full
force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded.

-56-



[+
=

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the
Agency this ___day of , 2020.

Donald C. Alexander, Chief Executive Officer

57- 7



PRELIMINARY AGREEMENT

THIS PRELIMINARY AGREEMENT made as of , 2020 between JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the "Agency"), a public benefit
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, and OYA
ROBINSON ROAD LLC (the "Company"), a limited liability company, organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Delaware;

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Agency is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the New
York State Industrial Development Agency Act, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the
General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of the State of New York, as
amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 369 of the 1971 Laws of the State of New York,
as amended, constituting Section 892-e of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and
the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Act") to undertake the
acquisition, construction, reconstruction and installation of one or more "projects” (as said
quoted term is defined in the Act) and to lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sell the
same upon such terms and conditions as the Agency may deem advisable; and

WHEREAS, the purposes of the Act are to promote industry and develop trade and
thereby advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of
the inhabitants of Jefferson County, New York and the State of New York, to improve their
prosperity and standard of living and to prevent unemployment and economic
deterioration; and

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on June 4, 2020
(the "Preliminary Inducement Resolution"), the Agency made a preliminary determination,
subject to numerous conditions, to accept an application (the "Application”) from the
Company requesting that the Agency undertake a project (the "Project”) consisting of the
following: (A) (1) the acquisition of an interest in certain parcels of land located in the
Town of Orleans, to wit: tax parcels 13.00-2-47.1 and 13.00-2-32.1, Jefferson County, New
York (the “Land”), and (2) construction on the Land of a 5 megawatt solar photo-voltaic
community distribution generation facility (the Facility”) to be operated by the Company
(the Land and the Facility collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”; (B) the granting
of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of section 854(14) of the Act) with
respect to the foregoing, including exemption from certain real estate taxes (the “Financial
Assistance”); and (C) the lease with an obligation to purchase or sale of the Project Facility
to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and agreed
upon by the Agency; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter
43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act"), and the
regulations (the "Regulations”) adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of
Environmental Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act,

I

-58-



"SEQRA"), by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on June 4, 2020 (the "SEQR
Resolution™), the Agency has determined that the Project will not have a significant effect
on the environment and, therefore, that an environmental impact statement is not required
to be prepared with respect to the Project;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the
Agency and the Company agree as follows:

Article 1. Representations.

Among the representations which have resulted in the execution of this Preliminary
Agreement are the following:

Section 1.01. The Company hereby represents to the Agency that:

(A) The completion of the Project Facility will not result in the
removal of a plant or facility of the Company or any other proposed occupant
of the Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area
of the State of New York or in the abandonment of a plant or facility of any
proposed occupant of the Project Facility (other than the Company) located
in the State of New York and, although the completion of the Project Facility
may result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the
Company located in the State of New York, such abandonment is reasonably
necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Company in its
industry.

(B)  The Project Facility will not constitute a project where facilities
or property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods or services
to customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-
third of the total cost of the Project Facility.

(C)  The Project site is located entirely within the boundaries of
Jefferson County, New York.

(D)  The granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with
respect to the Project, through the granting of certain exemptions from
taxation with respect to the Project, as further described in Section 2(D) of
the Preliminary Inducement Resolution, will encourage and assist the
Company in locating the Project Facility in Jefferson County, New York, and
thereby serve the public purposes of the Act by promoting job opportunities
in Jefferson County, New York.

(E) It is estimated at the present time that the costs of the
planning, development, acquisition, construction and installation of the
Project Facility (collectively, the "Project Costs") will be approximately
$10,321,000.00.

_59-



N W W

;{j_:, PRV oY

(F)  The Company will ensure that the acquisition, construction,
installation and operation of the Project Facility will comply with all
applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations (the
applicability of same to be determined both as if the Agency were the owner
of the Project Facility and as if the Company and not the Agency were the
owner of the Project Facility), and the Company will obtain all necessary
approvals and permits required thereunder.

Section 1.02. By the Preliminary Inducement Resolution, the Agency has
approved the execution of this Preliminary Agreement. The Agency intends this
Preliminary Agreement to constitute its official binding commitment, subject to the
terms hereof, to accept the Application; provided, however, that this Preliminary
Agreement shall not commit the Agency to undertake the Project or to grant to the
Company any Financial Assistance with respect to the Project unless and until the
Agency shall decide to undertake the Project and to grant such Financial Assistance
following a determination by the Agency that the procedural requirements of
Section 859-a of the Act that relate to the Project have been fulfilled.

Section 1.03. Pursuant to SEQRA, the Agency has made a preliminary
determination that the Project will not have a "significant effect on the
environment" (within the meaning of SEQRA) and, therefore, that an environmental
impact statement is not required to be prepared with respect to the Project.

Article 2. Undertakings on the Part of the Agency.

Based upon the statements, representations and undertakings of the Company and
subject to the conditions set forth herein, the Agency agrees as follows:

Section 2.01. If, following full compliance with the requirements of the Act,
including the public hearing requirements set forth in Section 859-a of the Act, the
Agency adopts a future resolution (the "Future Resolution") determining to proceed
with the Project and to grant the Financial Assistance with respect thereto and the
Company complies with all conditions set forth in this Preliminary Agreement and
the Future Resolution, then the Agency will undertake the Project and will grant the
Financial Assistance relating to the Project; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that the
foregoing obligation of the Agency to undertake the Project and to grant the
Financial Assistance relating to the Project is subject to the conditions hereinafter
contained in this Preliminary Agreement including, but not limited to, the following
conditions:

(A)  An interest in the Project Facility shall be acquired by the
Agency from the Company pursuant to a deed, lease agreement or other
documentation to be negotiated between the Agency and the Company
(hereinafter, the "Acquisition Agreement") which contains terms mutually
acceptable to the Agency and the Company for the conveyance of an interest

a
2

-60-



in the Project Facility to the Agency. Any Equipment acquired by the
Company prior to the execution and delivery of the Project Agreement (as
hereinafter defined) shall be conveyed to the Agency by a bill of sale from the
Company to the Agency. After the Project Agreement (as hereinafter
defined) has been executed and delivered by the Agency and the Company
then, pursuant to the Project Agreement, any Equipment acquired by the
Company as part of the Project will be acquired by the Company as agent of
the Agency. The lease with an obligation to purchase or sale of the Project
Facility by the Agency to the Company shall be effected by a lease agreement
or an installment sale agreement (hereinafter, the "Project Agreement”)
between the Agency and the Company whereby the Company will be
obligated, among other things, to make payments to the Agency in amounts
and at such times so that such payments will be adequate to enable the
Agency to timely pay all amounts due on the Acquisition Agreement. The
Acquisition Agreement and the Project Agreement and any other documents
to be executed by the Agency in connection with the Project (collectively, the
"Project Documents") shall, in all respects, comply with the requirements of,
and limitations contained in, the Act and shall further specifically provide
that the obligations of the Agency thereunder are payable solely from the
revenues derived by the Agency from the sale, lease or other disposition of
the Project Facility; that the obligations of the Agency thereunder shall not be
a general obligation of the Agency and shall not constitute an indebtedness
or pledge of the general credit of the Agency; that no beneficiary of the
obligations of the Agency thereunder shall have the right to compel any
exercise of the taxing power of the Agency (if any), or of the State of New
York or any political subdivision thereof, including Jefferson County, New
York; and that the obligations of the Agency thereunder shall not create a
debt or loan of credit of Jefferson County, New York or the State of New York,
but such obligations shall be a special obligation of the Agency secured and
payable solely as provided in the Acquisition Agreement or the Project
Agreement, as the case may be, and such facts shall be plainly stated in each
of such documents;

(B) The Company shall have executed the Project Agreement
between the Agency and the Company, the terms of which shall be acceptable
in form and content to the Company and the Agency, and pursuant to which,
among other things, the Company shall be obligated to pay all costs incurred
by the Agency with respect to the Project and/or the Project Facility,
including all costs of operation and maintenance of the Project Facility, all
taxes and other governmental charges, any required payments in lieu of
taxes, and the reasonable fees and expenses incurred by the Agency with
respect to or in connection with the Project and/or the Project Facility;

(C)  No event shall have occurred which constitutes (or which after
notice or lapse of time or both would constitute) an event of default under
the Project Agreement;

~61-



(D) The Company shall provide the Agency with all information
and statements which may be required by the Agency in order to facilitate
compliance by the Agency with SEQRA;

(E)  The Agency shall receive, in form and substance satisfactory to
the Agency, such rulings, approvals, resolutions, consents, certificates,
opinions of counsel and other instruments and proceedings as shall be
specified by the Agency in connection with the Project and the various
documents to be executed in connection with the Project, such rulings,
approvals, resolutions, consents, certificates, opinions of counsel and other
instruments and proceedings to be obtained from counsel to the Agency and
such other governmental and nongovernmental agencies and entities as may
have or assert competence or jurisdiction over or interest in matters
pertaining thereto;

(F)  Agreements shall be made as to (1) payments by the Company
to or on behalf of the Agency of amounts in lieu of real property taxes, (2)
indemnity by the Company of the Agency and the members and officers of
the Agency, and (3) payment by the Company of the expenses incurred by the
Agency in connection with the Project (including counsel fees and out-of-
pocket expenses) and the administrative fee of the Agency, and such
agreements shall be satisfactory in form and substance to the Agency;

(G)  The Agency shall have made a determination to proceed with
the granting of the Financial Assistance following a determination by the
Agency that all the public hearing and notice requirements and other
procedural requirements of Section 859-a of the Act that relate to the Project
have been complied with;

(H) If any portion of the Financial Assistance to be granted by the
Agency with respect to the Project is not consistent with the Agency's
uniform tax exemption policy, the Agency must follow the procedures for
deviation from such policy set forth in Section 874(b) of the Act prior to
granting such portion of the Financial Assistance; and

(D The following additional conditions: None.

Section 2.02. The obligations of the Agency pursuant to this Preliminary

Agreement are subject to the conditions elsewhere contained in this Preliminary
Agreement and to the additional condition that the Agency shall not undertake the
Project, nor grant any Financial Assistance with respect to the Project, unless and
until the Agency shall have complied with the provisions of SEQRA.

Section 2.03. Subject to the conditions stated in this Preliminary Agreement,

the Agency, from time to time, will adopt, or cause to be adopted, such proceedings

5

-62-



and authorize the execution of such documents as may be necessary or advisable
for: (A) the authorization, undertaking and completion of the Project; and (B) the
sale or lease of the Project Facility to the Company, all as shall be authorized by law
and be mutually satisfactory to the Agency and the Company.

Section 2.04. The Agency will take or cause to be taken such other acts and
adopt such further proceedings as may be required to implement the aforesaid
undertakings or as it may deem appropriate in pursuance thereof.

Article 3. Undertakings on the Part of the Companv.

Based upon the statements, representations and undertakings of the Agency and
subject to the conditions set forth herein, the Company agrees as follows:

Section 3.01. Contemporaneously with the execution and delivery by the
Agency of the Acquisition Agreement, the Company will enter into the Project
Agreement with the Agency containing the terms and conditions described in
Section 2.01 hereof. The Company agrees that the Company will pay all of the
Project Costs and shall not be entitled to any reimbursement for any such payment
from the Agency. THE AGENCY MAKES NO WARRANTY, EITHER EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, THAT THE PROJECT FACILITY WILL BE SUITABLE FOR THE COMPANY'S
PURPOSES OR NEEDS.

Section 3.02. The Company hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the Agency
(and its members, officers, agents and employees) harmless from all losses,
expenses, claims and liabilities arising out of or based on labor, services, materials
and supplies, including equipment, ordered or used in connection with the
acquisition, construction and installation of the Project Facility, including any
expenses incurred by the Agency (and its members, officers, agents and employees)
in defending any claims, suits or actions which may arise as a result of any of the
foregoing. The Company shall not permit to stand, and will, at its own expense, take
steps reasonably necessary to remove, any mechanic's or other liens against the
Project Facility for labor or material furnished in connection with the acquisition,
construction and installation of the Project Facility.

Section 3.03. The Company hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the
Agency (and its members, officers, agents and employees) harmless from any and all
(A) claims and liabilities for the loss or damage to property or any injury to or death
of any person that may be occasioned subsequent to the date hereof by any cause
whatsoever in relation to the Project and/or the Project Facility, including any
expenses incurred by the Agency (and its members, officers, agents and employees)
in defending any claims, suits or actions which may arise as a result of the foregoing;
and (B) claims and liability arising from or expenses incurred in connection with the
Project or the Agency's acquisition, construction and installation, owning, leasing
and/or sale of the Project Facility, including all causes of action and attorneys' fees
and any other expenses incurred in defending any suits or actions which may arise

6
-63-



&
i)

as a result of any of the foregoing. The Company shall include the Agency (and its
members, officers, agents and employees) as a named insured under all public
liability insurance policies obtained by the Company with respect to the Project.

Section 3.04. The Company will take such further action and adopt such
further proceedings as may be required to implement its aforesaid undertakings or
as it may deem appropriate in pursuance thereof.

Article 4. General Provisions.

Section 4.01. All commitments of the Agency under Article 2 hereof and of
the Company under Article 3 hereof (excepting the obligations of the Company set
forth in Sections 3.02 and 3.03 hereof, which shall survive the termination of this
Preliminary Agreement) are subject to the condition that the following events shall
have occurred not later than two (2) years from the date hereof (or such other date
as shall be mutually satisfactory to the Agency and the Company):

(A) The Agency and the Company shall have agreed on mutually
acceptable terms and conditions of the Acquisition Agreement, the Project
Agreement and any other agreements referred to in Articles 2 or 3 hereof;

(B)  All necessary governmental approvals shall be obtained; and

(C)  All other conditions expressed in this Preliminary Agreement
shall have been satisfied.

Section 4.02. Subject to the terms and conditions of Section 4.03 hereof, the
Company shall have the right to unilaterally cancel this Preliminary Agreement at
any time prior to the time that the Acquisition Agreement is signed by the Agency
upon thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation delivered to the Agency at
the address set forth in Section 4.04 hereof.

Section 4.03. If the events set forth in Section 4.01 hereof do not take place
within the time set forth in said Section 4.01, or any extension thereof, or if the
Company exercises its right of cancellation as set forth in Section 4.02 hereof, the
Company agrees that: (A) it will promptly reimburse the Agency (and its officers,
members, agents or employees) for all reasonable and necessary direct out-of-
pocket expenses (including legal fees and expenses) which the Agency (and its
officers, members, agents or employees) may incur with respect to the execution of
this Preliminary Agreement and the performance of its obligations hereunder; and
(B) the obligations of the Company set forth in Section 3.02 and 3.03 hereof shall
survive the termination of this Preliminary Agreement and shall remain in full force
and effect until the expiration of the period stated in the applicable statute of
limitations during which a claim, cause of action or prosecution relating to the
matters described therein may be brought and payment in full or the satisfaction of
such claim, cause of action or prosecution and the payment of all expenses and

7

-64-



}_

i
o

charges incurred by the Agency (and its officers, members, agents or employees)
relating to the enforcement of the provisions therein stated.

ot N W L
N | \'“.j _.I'

ER. i el N

e e bl 2DV A Al

Section 4.04. (A) All notices and other communications hereunder shall be
in writing and shall be deemed given when mailed by United States registered or
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

(1)  To the Agency:

Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue

Watertown, New York 13601

Attention: Donald C. Alexander

With a copy to:

Joseph W. Russell, Esq.

Barclay Damon LLP

120 Washington Street, Suite 500
Watertown, NY 13601

(2)  To the Company:

OYA Robinson Road LLC

Att: Terrance Rasmussen

144 Front Street West, Suite 310
Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5] 2C7

With a copy to:

Bernard Corpus, Esq.
144 Front Street West, Suite 310
Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5] 2C7

(B) The Agency and the Company may, by notice given hereunder,
designate any further or different addresses to which subsequent notices,
certificates and other communications shall be sent.

Section 4.05. All covenants and agreements herein contained by or on
behalf of the Agency and the Company shall bind and inure to the benefit of the
respective successors and assigns of the Agency and the Company whether so
expressed or not.

Section 4.06. The obligations and agreements of the Agency contained
herein shall be deemed the obligations and agreements of the Agency, and not of any
member, officer, agent or employee of the Agency in his individual capacity, and the

8
-65-



members, officers, agents and employees of the Agency shall not be liable personally
hereon or be subject to any personal liability or accountability base upon or in
respect hereof or of any transaction contemplated hereby. The obligations and
agreements of the Agency contained herein shall not constitute or give rise to an
obligation of the State of New York or of Jefferson County, New York and neither the
State of New York nor Jefferson County, New York shall be liable thereon and,
further, such obligations and agreements shall not constitute or give rise to a
general obligation of the Agency but, rather, shall constitute limited obligations of
the Agency payable solely from the revenues of the Agency derived and to be
derived from the lease, sale or other disposition of the Project Facility.

Section 4.07. Notwithstanding any provision of this Preliminary Agreement
to the contrary, the Agency shall not be obligated to take any action pursuant to any
provision hereof unless (A) the Agency has been requested to do so in writing by the
Company; and (B) if compliance with such request is reasonably expected to result
in the incurrence by the Agency (or any member, officer, agent or employee of the
Agency) of any liability, fees, expenses or other costs, the Agency shall have received
from the Company security or indemnity satisfactory to the Agency for protection
against all such liability and for the reimbursement of all such fees, expenses and

other costs.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into this Preliminary
Agreement as of the day and date first written above.

JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY

By:

Donald C. Alexander, Chief Executive Officer

OYA ROBINSON ROAD LLC

By:

Authorized Officer

-66-



Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project and Setting

Instructions for Completing Part 1

Part 1 is to be completed by the applicant or project sponsor. Responses become part of the application for approval or funding,
are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification.

Complete Part 1 based on information currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to
any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on current information; indicate whether missing information does not exist,
or is not reasonably available to the sponsor; and, when possible, generally describe work or studies which would be necessary to

update or fully develop that information.

Applicants/sponsors must complete all items in Sections A & B. In Sections C, D & E, most items contain an initial question that
must be answered either “Yes” or “No”. If the answer to the initial question is “Yes”, complete the sub-questions that follow. If the
answer to the initial question is “No”, proceed to the next question. Section F allows the project sponsor to identify and attach any
additional information. Section G requires the name and signature of the applicant or project sponsor to verify that the information

contained in Part 1is accurate and complete.

A. Project and Applicant/Sponsor Information.

Name of Action or Project:
OYA Wayside Dr.
Project Location (describe, and attach a general location map):

22421 Wayside Dr. Watertown, NY 13601

Brief Description of Proposed Action (include purpose or need):
The projectis SMWAC/7.5MWDC solar+storage project. The project is located in the Jefferson County at 22421 Wayside Dr. Watertown, NY 13601
(44.016542, -75.921980). The site access will be via a proposed gravel road off of Main Street, entering the site at the west of the property.

The Project will be new Photo-Voltaic (‘PV") power generation system with Direct Current (“DC”) coupled Energy Storage System (“ESS"). The solar panel
modules have been sited to satisfy or exceed Town zoning ordinances, with a focus on minimizing visual impacts on surrounding landowners and the
community. While 108.4 acres exist under site control, the solar PV system itself will occupy approximately 36.85 acres, which translates into a coverage

ratio of 34%.

The purpose of the project is to supply clean electricity to National Grid utility.

Name of Applicant/Sponsor: Telephone: (416) 840-3358
QYA Solar L.P. E-Mail:
Address: 335 Madison Ave, 4th Floor,
City/PO: yew York State: New York Zip Code: 10017
Project Contact (if not same as sponsor; give name and title/role): Telephone: (416) 840-3358 X 156
Taymaz Jahani E-Mail: yo0esh kumar@oyasolar.com
Address:
144 Front Street W, Suite 310
City/PO: State: Zip Code:
Toronto Ontario MS5J 2L7
Property Owner (if not same as sponsor): Telephone:
Nicholas and Barbara lannuzzi E-Mail:
Address:
22421 Wayside Dr.
i ] tate: Zip Code:
City/PO Watertown e New York P 13601

Page 1 of 13

3]

-67-




B. Government Approvals

B. Government Approvals, Funding, or Sponsorship. (“Funding” includes grants, loans, tax relief, and any other forms of financial

assistance.)

Government Entity If Yes: Identify Agency and Approval(s) Application Date
Required (Actual or projected)
a. City Counsel, Town Board, BAYes[INo |site Plan Approval
or Village Board of Trustees
b. City, Town or Village KYes[INo | special use Permit
Planning Board or Commission
c. City, Town or OyYeskANo
Village Zoning Board of Appeals
d. Other local agencies OYeskANo
e. County agencies CIYeskNo
f. Regional agencies CIYeskANo
g. State agencies MlYes[TJNo  |NYS Dept. of Environmental Conservation,
SPDES Permit
h. Federal agencies EAYes[JNo | Us Fish and Wildlife Services, ACOE, SHPO
i. Coastal Resources.
i. Is the project site within a Coastal Area, or the waterfront area of a Designated Inland Waterway? C1YeskZNo
ii. Is the project site located in a community with an approved Local Waterfront Revitalization Program? [ YeskdNo
iii. Is the project site within a Coastal Erosion Hazard Area? O YeskZINo
C. Planning and Zoning
C.1. Planning and zoning actions.
Will administrative or legislative adoption, or amendment of a plan, local law, ordinance, rule or regulation be the [JYeskZNo
only approval(s) which must be granted to enable the proposed action to proceed?
e IfYes, complete sections C, F and G.
e If No, proceed to question C.2 and complete all remaining sections and questions in Part 1
C.2. Adopted land use plans.
a. Do any municipally- adopted (city, town, village or county) comprehensive land use plan(s) include the site CYeskNo
where the proposed action would be located?
If Yes, does the comprehensive plan include specific recommendations for the site where the proposed action CIyesEINo
would be located?
b. Is the site of the proposed action within any local or regional special planning district (for example: Greenway; C1YeskNo
Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA); designated State or Federal heritage area; watershed management plan;
or other?)
If Yes, identify the plan(s):
YeskANo

c. Is the proposed action located wholly or partially within an area listed in an adopted municipal open space plan,
or an adopted municipal farmland protection plan?
If Yes, identify the plan(s):

Page 2 of 13

2

-68-




C.3. Zoning

a. Is the site of the proposed action located in a municipality with an adopted zoning law or ordinance. KAYes[INo

If Yes, what is the zoning classification(s) including any applicable overlay district?

Agricultural

b. Is the use permitted or allowed by a special or conditional use permit? A Yes[INo
O YeskdNo

c. Is a zoning change requested as part of the proposed action?

If Yes,
i. What is the proposed new zoning for the site?

C.4. Existing community services.

a. In what school district is the project site located? General Brown Central

b. What police or other public protection forces serve the project site?
Jefferson County Sheriff.s Office. NYPD

¢. Which fire protection and emergency medical services serve the project site?
Jefferson County Fire & EMO

d. What parks serve the project site?

D. Project Details

D.1. Proposed and Potential Development

a. What is the general nature of the proposed action (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial, recreational; if mixed, include all
components)? Solar - Electricity Generation

b. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? 108.4 acres
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? Approx. 36.85 acres
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned

or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? 108.4 acres

c. Is the proposed action an expansion of an existing project or use? O YeskANo
i If Yes, what is the approximate percentage of the proposed expansion and identify the units (e.g., acres, miles, housing units,

square feet)? % Units:
d. Is the proposed action a subdivision, or does it include a subdivision? OYesANo
If Yes,
i. Purpose or type of subdivision? (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial; if mixed, specify types)
ii. Is a cluster/conservation layout proposed? ClyesONo
iii. Number of lots proposed?
iv. Minimum and maximum proposed lot sizes? Minimum Maximum
e. Will the proposed action be constructed in multiple phases? OYeskANo
i If No, anticipated period of construction: 8 months
i, If Yes:
e  Total number of phases anticipated
Anticipated commencement date of phase 1 (including demolition) month year

®
e Anticipated completion date of final phase month year
o  Generally describe connections or relationships among phases, including any contingencies where progress of one phase may

determine timing or duration of future phases:

Page 3 of 13

oA

-69-




YespANo

f. Does the project include new residential uses?

If Yes, show numbers of units proposed.
One Family Two Family Three Family Multiple Family (four or more)

Initial Phase
At completion
of all phases

g. Does the proposed action include new non-residential construction (including expansions)? A Yes[dNo
If Yes,
i. Total number of structures Multiple
ii. Dimensions (in feet) of largest proposed structure: 12 height; 10.5 width; and 36 length
ifi. Approximate extent of building space to be heated or cooled: 0 square feet
h. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that will result in the impoundment of any JYesiANo
liquids, such as creation of a water supply, reservoir, pond, lake, waste lagoon or other storage?
If Yes,
i. Purpose of the impoundment:
ii. If a water impoundment, the principal source of the water: [ Ground water [_} Surface water streams [ JOther specify:
iii. If other than water, identify the type of impounded/contained liquids and their source.
iv. Approximate size of the proposed impoundment. Volume: million gallons; surface area: acres
v. Dimensions of the proposed dam or impounding structure: height; length

vi. Construction method/materials for the proposed dam or impounding structure (e.g., earth fill, rock, wood, concrete):

D.2. Project Operations
a. Does the proposed action include any excavation, mining, or dredging, during construction, operations, or both? LlYespANo
(Not including general site preparation, grading or installation of utilities or foundations where all excavated
materials will remain onsite)
If Yes: :
i.What is the purpose of the excavation or dredging?
ii. How much material (including rock, earth, sediments, etc.) is proposed to be removed from the site?
¢  Volume (specify tons or cubic yards):

e  Over what duration of time?
iii. Describe nature and characteristics of materials to be excavated or dredged, and plans to use, manage or dispose of them.

iv. Will there be onsite dewatering or processing of excavated materials? Oves[ INo
If yes, describe.
v. What is the total area to be dredged or excavated? acres
acres

vi. What is the maximum area to be worked at any one time?

vii. What would be the maximum depth of excavation or dredging? feet

viii. Will the excavation require blasting? Cyes[INo
ix. Summarize site reclamation goals and plan:

b. Would the proposed action cause or result in alteration of, increase or decrease in size of, or encroachment [:IYesNo
into any existing wetland, waterbody, shoreline, beach or adjacent area?

If Yes:
i. Identify the wetland or waterbody which would be affected (by name, water index number, wetland map number or geographic

description):

Page 4 of 13

oz

-70-



_ ii. Describe how the proposed action would affect that waterbody or wetland, e.g. excavation, fill, placement of structures, or
alteration of channels, banks and shorelines. Indicate extent of activities, alterations and additions in square feet or acres:

iii. Will the proposed action cause or result in disturbance to bottom sediments? [dYeskANo
If Yes, describe: :

iv. Will the proposed action cause or result in the destruction or removal of aquatic vegetation? O Yes[CINo
If Yes:

e acres of aquatic vegetation proposed to be removed:

» expected acreage of aquatic vegetation remaining after project completion:
e purpose of proposed removal (e.g. beach clearing, invasive species control, boat access):

¢ proposed method of plant removal:

e if chemical/herbicide treatment will be used, specify product(s):
v. Describe any proposed reclamation/mitigation following disturbance:

c. Will the proposed action use, or create a new demand for water? [YesNo
If Yes:
i. Total anticipated water usage/demand per day: gallons/day
. Will the proposed action obtain water from an existing public water supply? Oves[No
If Yes:
e Name of district or service area:
e Does the existing public water supply have capacity to serve the proposal? Yes[No
e I3 the project site in the existing district? [ Yes[INo
o Is expansion of the district needed? OYesINo
e Do existing lines serve the project site? O yYesCINo
iii. Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to supply the project? Clyes No
If Yes:

e Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:

e  Source(s) of supply for the district:

iv. [s a new water supply district or service area proposed to be formed to serve the project site? 3 Yes[CINo
If, Yes:
e  Applicant/sponsor for new district:

e  Date application submitted or anticipated:
e  Proposed source(s) of supply for new district:

v. If a public water supply will not be used, describe plans to provide water supply for the project:

vi. If water supply will be from wells (public or private), what is the maximum pumping capacity: gallons/minute.
d. Will the proposed action generate liquid wastes? O YeskANo
If Yes:

i Total anticipated liquid waste generation per day: gallons/day

ii. Nature of liquid wastes to be generated (e.g., sanitary wastewater, industrial; if combination, describe all components and
approximate volumes or proportions of each):

iii. Will the proposed action use any existing public wastewater treatment facilities? OYes[INo
If Yes:
e  Name of wastewater treatment plant to be used:
e  Name of district:
e Does the existing wastewater treatment plant have capacity to serve the project? OYes[ONo
e I[s the project site in the existing district? [OYes[INo
e Isexpansion of the district needed? CYes[No

Page 5 of 13

or

-71-




¢ Do existing sewer lines serve the project site? OYes[No
e  Will a line extension within an existing district be necessary to serve the project? [JYes[No

If Yes:

e Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:

fv. Will a new wastewater (sewage) treatment district be formed to serve the project site? OYesiANo
If Yes:

e  Applicant/sponsor for new district:

e  Date application submitted or anticipated:

° What is the receiving water for the wastewater discharge?
v. If public facilities will not be used, describe plans to provide wastewater treatment for the project, including specifying proposed

receiving water (name and classification if surface discharge or describe subsurface disposal plans):

vi. Describe any plans or designs to capture, recycle or reuse liquid waste:

e. Will the proposed action disturb more than one acre and create stormwater runoff, either from new point AYes[ONo
sources (i.e. ditches, pipes, swales, curbs, gutters or other concentrated flows of stormwater) or non-point
source (i.e. sheet flow) during construction or post construction?
If Yes:
i. How much impervious surface will the project create in relation to total size of project parcel?
Square feet or 1+ acres (impervious surface)

Square feet or acres (parcel size)
ii. Describe types of new point sources.No point source, Sheet flow from solar panels will infiltrate ground surface or be directed to storm-water

management facility

iii. Where will the stormwater runoff be directed (i.e. on-site stormwater management facility/structures, adjacent properties,
groundwater, on-site surface water or off-site surface waters)?

o If to surface waters, identify receiving water bodies or wetlands:

e  Will stormwater runoff flow to adjacent properties? [ YesiANo
iv. Does the proposed plan minimize impervious surfaces, use pervious materials or collect and re-use stormwater? B Yes[1No
f. Does the proposed action include, or will it use on-site, one or more sources of air emissions, inciuding fuel Cyes[dNo

combustion, waste incineration, or other processes or operations?
If Yes, identify:
i. Mobile sources during project operations (e.g., heavy equipment, fleet or delivery vehicles)

ii. Stationary sources during construction (e.g., power generation, structural heating, batch plant, crushers)

iii. Stationary sources during operations (e.g., process emissions, large boilers, electric generation)

g. Will any air emission sources named in D.2.f (above), require a NY State Air Registration, Air Facility Permit,  [IYesiANo
or Federal Clean Air Act Title IV or Title V Permit?

If Yes:
i. Is the project site located in an Air quality non-attainment area? (Area routinely or periodically fails to meet OyesCINo

ambient air quality standards for all or some parts of the year)
ii. In addition to emissions as calculated in the application, the project will generate:
Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide (CO,)
Tons/year (short tons) of Nitrous Oxide (N,O)
Tons/year (short tons) of Perfluorocarbons (PFCs)
Tons/year (short tons) of Sulfur Hexafluoride (SF¢)
Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide equivalent of Hydroflourocarbons (HFCs)
Tons/year (short tons) of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

Page 6 of 13

o

_72-



h. Will the proposed action generate or emit methane (including, but not limited to, sewage treatment plants, [JvestANo
landfills, composting facilities)?
If Yes:
i Estimate methane generation in tons/year (metric):

ii. Describe any methane capture, control or elimination measures included in project design (e.g., combustion to generate heat or
electricity, flaring):

i. Will the proposed action result in the release of air pollutants from open-air operations or processes, such as yespANo
quarry or landfill operations?
If Yes: Describe operations and nature of emissions (e.g., diesel exhaust, rock particulates/dust):

j. Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels or generate substantial OYestANo
new demand for transportation facilities or services?
If Yes:
i When is the peak traffic expected (Check all that apply):  [JMorning [ Evening OWeekend
[0 Randomly between hours of to

ii. For commercial activities only, projected number of truck trips/day and type (e.g., semi trailers and dump trucks):

iii. Parking spaces:  Existing Proposed Net increase/decrease

iv. Does the proposed action include any shared use parking? ClyesChNo
v. If the proposed action includes any modification of existing roads, creation of new roads or change in existing access, describe:

vi. Are public/private transportation service(s) or facilities available within % mile of the proposed site? [OYes[JNo

vii Will the proposed action include access to public transportation or accommodations for use of hybrid, electric ~ [[JYes[JNo
or other alternative fueled vehicles?

viii. Will the proposed action include plans for pedestrian or bicycle accommodations for connections to existing Clyes[INo
pedestrian or bicycle routes?

k. Will the proposed action (for commercial or industrial projects only) generate new or additional demand [dyeskANo
for energy?
If Yes:

i Estimate annual electricity demand during operation of the proposed action:

ii. Anticipated sources/suppliers of electricity for the project (e.g., on-site combustion, on-site renewable, via grid/local utility, or
other):

iii. Will the proposed action require a new, or an upgrade, to an existing substation? [Oyes[INo

l. Hours of operation. Answer all items which apply.

i. During Construction: ii. During Operations:
e Monday - Friday: 6AM-8PM e  Monday - Friday:
e  Saturday: BAM-8PM e  Saturday:
o Sunday: 6AM-8PM e  Sunday:
¢ Holidays: 0 e  Holidays:
Page 7 of 13

00

_73-




m. Will the proposed action produce noise that will exceed existing ambient noise levels during construction,
operation, or both?

Ifyes:

i. Provide details including sources, time of day and duration:

KA YesONo

Construction eguipment during construction period anticipated to be up to 8 months

ii. Will the proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a noise barrier or screen?
Describe:

O YesANo

n. Will the proposed action have outdoor lighting?
Ifyes:
i. Describe source(s), location(s), height of fixture(s), direction/aim, and proximity to nearest occupied structures:

OYesiANo

ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a light barrier or screen?
Describe:

O yesKANo

o. Does the proposed action have the potential to produce odors for more than one hour per day?
If Yes, describe possible sources, potential frequency and duration of odor emissions, and proximity to nearest

occupied structures:

OYesEANo

p. Will the proposed action include any bulk storage of petroleum (combined capacity of over 1,100 gallons)
or chemical products 185 gallons in above ground storage or any amount in underground storage?
If Yes:
i. Product(s) to be stored

OYesANo

ii. Volume(s) per unit time (e.g., month, year)
iii. Generally, describe the proposed storage facilities:

q. Will the proposed action (commercial, industrial and recreational projects only) use pesticides (i.e., herbicides,
insecticides) during construction or operation?

If Yes:
i. Describe proposed treatment(s):

[ Yes ANo

. Will the proposed action use Integrated Pest Management Practices?

[1 Yes KANo

r. Will the proposed action (commercial or industrial projects only) involve or require the management or disposal
of solid waste (excluding hazardous materials)?

If Yes:
i. Describe any solid waste(s) to be generated during construction or operation of the facility:
¢  Construction: tons per (unit of time)
e  Operation ; tons per (unit of time)

ii. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of materials to avoid disposal as solid waste:

e Construction:

[ Yes ANo

e  Operation:

iii. Proposed disposal methods/facilities for solid waste generated on-site:
e  Construction:

e  Operation:

Page 8 of 13

on

-74-




s. Does the proposed action include construction or modification of a solid waste management facility? [ Yes A No

If Yes:
i Type of management or handling of waste proposed for the site (e.g., recycling or transfer station, composting, landfill, or

other disposal activities):

ii. Anticipated rate of disposal/processing:

° Tons/month, if transfer or other non-combustion/thermal treatment, or
° Tons/hour, if combustion or thermal treatment
ii. If landfill, anticipated site life: years

t. Will the proposed action at the site involve the commercial generation, treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous [ ]YespANo

waste?
If Yes:
i Name(s) of all hazardous wastes or constituents to be generated, handled or managed at facility:

ii. Generally describe processes or activities involving hazardous wastes or constituents:

iii. Specify amount to be handled or generated tons/month
iv. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of hazardous constituents:

v. Will any hazardous wastes be disposed at an existing offsite hazardous waste facility? [dveskANo
If Yes: provide name and location of facility:

[f No: describe proposed management of any hazardous wastes which will not be sent to a hazardous waste facility:

E. Site and Setting of Proposed Action

E.1. Land uses on and surrounding the project site

a. Existing land uses.
i. Check all uses that occur on, adjoining and near the project site.
[ Urban [0 Industrial [J Commercial [ Residential (suburban) [ Rural (non-farm)
[ Forest A Agriculture [J Aquatic [] Other (specify):
ii. If mix of uses, generally describe:

b. Land uses and covertypes on the project site.

Land use or Current Acreage After Change
Covertype Acreage Project Completion (Acres +/-)

e Roads, buildings, and other paved or impervious

surfaces 0.31 0.83 0.52
e Forested 14.08 14.08 0.00
o  Meadows, grasslands or brushlands (non-

agricultural, including abandoned agricultural) . 16150 ©12
*  Agricultural 62.47 25.23 37.24

(includes active orchards, field, greenhouse etc.)

e Surface water features

. R " .00
(lakes, ponds, streams, rivers, etc.) 18 el o
e  Wetlands (freshwater or tidal) 4.46 4,46 0.00
e Non-vegetated (bare rock, earth or fill) 297 297 0.00
o  Other
Describe:
Page 9 of 13

nn

-75-



c. Is the project site presently used by members of the community for public recreation? L yesldNo

i If Yes: explain:

d. Are there any facilities serving children, the elderly, people with disabilities (e.g., schools, hospitals, licensed (JYeskANo
day care centers, or group homes) within 1500 feet of the project site?

If Yes,
i Identify Facilities:

e. Does the project site contain an existing dam? OYeskANo
If Yes:
i. Dimensions of the dam and impoundment:
e Dam height: feet
e Dam length: feet
e Surface area: acres
¢ Volume impounded: gallons OR acre-feet
ii. Dam’s existing hazard classification:
iii. Provide date and summarize results of last inspection:
f. Has the project site ever been used as a municipal, commercial or industrial solid waste management facility, [yeskANo
or does the project site adjoin property which is now, or was at one time, used as a solid waste management facility?
If Yes:
i Has the facility been formally closed? OYes[] No
e [fyes, cite sources/documentation:
ii. Describe the location of the project site relative to the boundaries of the solid waste management facility:
ifi. Describe any development constraints due to the prior solid waste activities:
g. Have hazardous wastes been generated, treated and/or disposed of at the site, or does the project site adjoin CyeskANo

property which is now or was at one time used to commercially treat, store and/or dispose of hazardous waste?

If Yes:
i Describe waste(s) handled and waste management activities, including approximate time when activities occurred:

h. Potential contamination history. Has there been a reported spill at the proposed project site, or have any CyesA No
remedial actions been conducted at or adjacent to the proposed site?

If Yes:
i Is any portion of the site listed on the NYSDEC Spills Incidents database or Environmental Site Oyes[INo

Remediation database? Check all that apply:
[ Yes — Spills Incidents database Provide DEC ID number(s):

[ Yes — Environmental Site Remediation database Provide DEC ID number(s):
[ Neither database

ii. If site has been subject of RCRA corrective activities, describe control measures:

iti. Is the project within 2000 feet of any site in the NYSDEC Environmental Site Remediation database? OyestINo
If yes, provide DEC ID number(s):

iv. If yes to (i), (ii) or (iii) above, describe current status of site(s):

Page 10 of 13

I

-76-



v. Is the project site subject to an institutional control limiting property uses? OyeskANo
o Ifyes, DEC site ID number:

e  Describe the type of institutional control (e.g., deed restriction or easement):
Describe any use limitations:

Describe any engineering controls:

Will the project affect the institutional or engineering controls in place? [Jyes[INo
Explain:

E.2. Natural Resources On or Near Project Site

a. What is the average depth to bedrock on the project site? > 80 inch feet
b. Are there bedrock outcroppings on the project site? [dYeskANo
If Yes, what proportion of the site is comprised of bedrock outcroppings? 0%
¢. Predominant soil type(s) present on project site: Hudson Silt loam 38.9 %
Rhinebeck Silt Loam 19.4 %
Fluvaquents-Udifluvents complex 17.6 %
d. What is the average depth to the water table on the project site? Average: 1.5 feet
e. Drainage status of project site soils:[_] Well Drained: 10.8 % of site
[[] Moderately Well Drained: 38.9 % of site
[ Poorly Drained 50.4 % of site
f. Approximate proportion of proposed action site with slopes: A 0-10%: 91 % of site
KA 10-15%: 9 % of site
[J 15% or greater: % of site
g. Are there any unique geologic features on the project site? [1YesANo
If Yes, describe:
h. Surface water features.
i Does any portion of the project site contain wetlands or other waterbodies (including streams, rivers, kAYes[INo
ponds or lakes)?
ii. Do any wetlands or other waterbodies adjoin the project site? yes[INo
If Yes to either i or ii, continue. If No, skip to E.2.i.
iii. Are any of the wetlands or waterbodies within or adjoining the project site regulated by any federal, M vesCINo

state or local agency?
iv. For each identified regulated wetland and waterbody on the project site, provide the following information:

e  Streams: Name 805-9, 805-9.1 Classification ©
®  Lakes or Ponds: Name Classification
¢ Wetlands: Name Federal Waters, Federal Waters, Federal Waters, ... Approximate Size
¢ Wetland No. (if regulated by DEC)
v. Are any of the above water bodies listed in the most recent compilation of NYS water quality-impaired CyeskANo
waterbodies?

If yes, name of impaired water body/bodies and basis for listing as impaired:

i. Is the project site in a designated Floodway? CYeskANo
j. Is the project site in the 100-year Floodplain? OYesiANo
k. Is the project site in the 500-year Floodplain? [IYesANo
l.f Is the project site located over, or immediately adjoining, a primary, principal or sole source aquifer? OyeskANo
If Yes:

i Name of aquifer:

Page 11 of 13

A~

-77-



m. Identify the predominant wildlife species that occupy or use the project site:

n. Does the project site contain a designated significant natural community? dyeskANo
IfYes:
i Describe the habitat/community (composition, function, and basis for designation):
ii. Source(s) of description or evaluation:
iii. Extent of community/habitat:
e Currently: acres
e Following completion of project as proposed: acres
*  Gain or loss (indicate + or -): acres
0. Does project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by the federal government or NYS as M Yes[JNo

endangered or threatened, or does it contain any areas identified as habitat for an endangered or threatened species?

If Yes:
i Species and listing (endangered or threatened):

Indiana Bat, Northern Long-eared Bat, Henslow's Sparrow

p. Does the project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by N'YS as rare, or as a species of LlYeskANo
special concern?
If Yes:
i. Species and listing:
q. Is the project site or adjoining area currently used for hunting, trapping, fishing or shell fishing? Yes/ANo
If yes, give a brief description of how the proposed action may affect that use:
E.3. Designated Public Resources On or Near Project Site
a. [s the project site, or any portion of it, located in a designated agricultural district certified pursuant to OYespANo
Agriculture and Markets Law, Article 25-AA, Section 303 and 304?
If Yes, provide county plus district name/number:
b. Are agricultural lands consisting of highly productive soils present? lYes[ INo
i If Yes: acreage(s) on project site?45.10 acres
ii. Source(s) of soil rating(s): https://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/\WebSoilSurvey.aspx
c. Does the project site contain all or part of, or is it substantially contiguous to, a registered National [veskANo
Natural Landmark?
If Yes:
i. Nature of the natural landmark: ] Biological Community [ Geological Feature
ii. Provide brief description of landmark, including values behind designation and approximate size/extent:
d. Is the project site located in or does it adjoin a state listed Critical Environmental Area? [JYeskANo

If Yes:
i. CEA name:

ii. Basis for designation:

iii. Designating agency and date:

Page 12 of 13

nn

-78-




¢. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district [ vesCINo
which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner of the NYS
Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the State Register of Historic Places?
If Yes:
i. Nature of historic/archaeological resource: [[JArchaeological Site [OIHistoric Building or District
ii. Name:
ifi. Brief description of attributes on which listing is based:

f. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for CIyesfANo
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

g. Have additional archaeological or historic site(s) or resources been identified on the project site? OYespANo

If Yes:

i. Describe possible resource(s):

ii. Basis for identification:

h. Is the project site within fives miles of any officially designated and publicly accessible federal, state, or local CYesANo

scenic or aesthetic resource?
If Yes:
i. Identify resource:

ii. Nature of, or basis for, designation (e.g., established highway overlook, state or local park, state historic trail or scenic byway,
etc.):

#i. Distance between project and resource: miles.

i. Is the project site located within a designated river corridor under the Wild, Scenic and Recreational Rivers [dYeskANo

Program 6 NYCRR 666?
If Yes:
i. Identify the name of the river and its designation:

ii. Is the activity consistent with development restrictions contained in 6NYCRR Part 666? [dYes[INo

F. Additional Information
Attach any additional information which may be needed to clarify your project.

If you have identified any adverse impacts which could be associated with your proposal, please describe those impacts plus any
measures which you propose to avoid or minimize them.

G. Verification
I certify that the information provided is true to the best of my knowledge.

Applicant/Sponsor Name O &/ 4 /K,,/M_ s Date Lﬂjj,z /3 2078
VAR - s S ,’ ; /

y/ 4 <
Signature_fi fo -2 VG}/M T el Title CA AADIAAMN /;\Z‘M\/;__ B:_-./l()

PRINT FORM Page 13 of 13

na

-79-



Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 2 - Identification of Potential Project Impacts

Project :
Date :

Agency Use Only [If applicable]

Part 2 is to be completed by the lead agency. Part 2 is designed to help the lead agency inventory all potential resources that could
be affected by a proposed project or action. We recognize that the lead agency’s reviewer(s) will not necessarily be environmental
professionals. So, the questions are designed to walk a reviewer through the assessment process by providing a series of questions that
can be answered using the information found in Part 1. To further assist the lead agency in completing Part 2, the form identifies the
most relevant questions in Part 1 that will provide the information needed to answer the Part 2 question. When Part 2 is completed, the
lead agency will have identified the relevant environmental areas that may be impacted by the proposed activity.

If the lead agency is a state agency and the action is in any Coastal Area, complete the Coastal Assessment Form before proceeding

with this assessment.

Tips for completing Part 2:
Review all of the information provided in Part 1.

Answer each of the 18 questions in Part 2.

Check appropriate column to indicate the anticipated size of the impact.

checking the box “Moderate to large impact may occur.”
The reviewer is not expected to be an expert in environmental analysis.

Review any application, maps, supporting materials and the Full EAF Workbook.

If you answer “Yes” to a numbered question, please complete all the questions that follow in that section.
If you answer “No” to a numbered question, move on to the next numbered question.

Proposed projects that would exceed a numeric threshold contained in a question should result in the reviewing agency

e Ifyou are not sure or undecided about the size of an impact, it may help to review the sub-questions for the general

question and consult the workbook.

e  When answering a question consider all components of the proposed activity, that is, the “whole action”.
o  Consider the possibility for long-term and cumulative impacts as well as direct impacts.
e  Answer the question in a reasonable manner considering the scale and context of the project.

1. Impact on Land

Proposed action may involve construction on, or physical alteration of, [no YES
the land surface of the proposed site. (See Part 1. D.1)
If “Yes”, answer questions a -j. If “No”, move on to Section 2.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may involve construction on land where depth to water table is
E2d %] O
less than 3 feet.
b. The proposed action may involve construction on slopes of 15% or greater. E2f O
c. The proposed action may involve construction on land where bedrock is exposed, or | E2a ¥ (]
generally within 5 feet of existing ground surface.
d. The proposed action may involve the excavation and removal of more than 1,000 tons | D2a W O
of natural material.
e. The proposed action may involve construction that continues for more than one year | Dle M O
or in multiple phases.
f. The proposed action may result in increased erosion, whether from physical D2e, D2q %] O
disturbance or vegetation removal (including from treatment by herbicides).
g. The proposed action is, or may be, located within a Coastal Erosion hazard area. Bli i O
h. Other impacts: ¥ |
Page 1 of 10
FEAF 2019

-80-




Impact on Geological Features
The proposed action may result in the modification or destruction of, or inhibit

access to, any unique or unusual land forms on the site (e.g., cliffs, dunes, INO [vEs
minerals, fossils, caves). (See Part 1. E.2.g)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - ¢. If “No”’, move on to Section 3.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Partl small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. Identify the specific land form(s) attached: E2g = o
b. The proposed action may affect or is adjacent to a geological feature listed as a E3c O ]
registered National Natural Landmark.
Specific feature:
c. Other impacts: ] o
3. Impacts on Surface Water
The proposed action may affect one or more wetlands or other surface water CIno VIYES
bodies (e.g., streams, rivers, ponds or lakes). (See Part 1. D.2, E.2.h)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - [. If “No”, move on to Section 4.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Partl small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may create a new water body. D2b, Dih %4 O
b. The proposed action may result in an increase or decrease of over 10% or more than a D2b 4 O
10 acre increase or decrease in the surface area of any body of water.
c. The proposed action may involve dredging more than 100 cubic yards of material D2a 4| (]
from a wetland or water body.
d. The proposed action may involve construction within or adjoining a freshwater or Ezh Y4} O
tidal wetland, or in the bed or banks of any other water body.
e. The proposed action may create turbidity in a waterbody, either from upland erosion, | D2a, D2h ¥4 O
runoff or by disturbing bottom sediments.
f. The proposed action may include construction of one or more intake(s) for withdrawal | D2c 4| O
of water from surface water.
g. The proposed action may include construction of one or more outfall(s) for discharge | D2d 4| (|
of wastewater to surface water(s).
h. The proposed action may cause soil erosion, or otherwise create a source of D2e 4| O
stormwater discharge that may lead to siltation or other degradation of receiving
water bodies.
i. The proposed action may affect the water quality of any water bodies within or E2h ¥4 O
downstream of the site of the proposed action.
j. The proposed action may involve the application of pesticides or herbicides in or D2q, E2h ¥ |
around any water body.
k. The proposed action may require the construction of new, or expansion of existing, Dla, D2d M ]
wastewater treatment facilities.

Page 2 of 10

-81-



|. Other impacts:

4. Impact on groundwater
The proposed action may result in new or additional use of ground water, or

[INo

may have the potential to introduce contaminants to ground water or an aquifer.

(See Part 1. D.2,a, D.2.¢c, D.2.d, D.2.p, D.2.q, D.2.t)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h. If “No”, move on to Section J.

[JyES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may require new water supply wells, or create additional demand | D2¢ o =
on supplies from existing water supply wells.
b. Water supply demand from the proposed action may exceed safe and sustainable D2c o a
withdrawal capacity rate of the local supply or aquifer.
Cite Source:
c. The proposed action may allow or result in residential uses in areas without water and | Dla, D2¢ o ]
Sewer services.
d. The proposed action may include or require wastewater discharged to groundwater. D2d, E2I 0 H
e. The proposed action may result in the construction of water supply wells in locations | D2c, E1f, o a
where groundwater is, or is suspected to be, contaminated. Elg,Elh
f. The proposed action may require the bulk storage of petroleum or chemical products | D2p, E2I o a
over ground water or an aquifer.
g. The proposed action may involve the commercial application of pesticides within 100 | E2h, D2q, o 0
feet of potable drinking water or irrigation sources. E2l, D2c
h. Other impacts: o n
5. Impact on Flooding
The proposed action may result in development on lands subject to flooding. NO [1YEs
(See Part 1. E.2)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - g. If “No”, move on to Section 6.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may result in development in a designated floodway. E2i o a
b. The proposed action may result in development within a 100 year floodplain. E2j o o
c. The proposed action may result in development within a 500 year floodplain. E2k o O
d. The proposed action may result in, or require, modification of existing drainage D2b, D2e o o
patterns.
e. The proposed action may change flood water flows that contribute to flooding. D2b, E2i, o =
E2j, E2k
Ele o |

f. If there is a dam located on the site of the proposed action, is the dam in need of repair,
or upgrade?

Page 3 of 10

-82-




g. Other impacts: a o
6. Impacts on Air
The proposed action may include a state regulated air emission source. IZNO DYES
(See Part 1. D.2.f,,D.2.h, D.2.¢g)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - f If “No”, move on to Section 7.
Relevant No, or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. If the proposed action requires federal or state air emission permits, the action may
also emit one or more greenhouse gases at or above the following levels:
i. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide (CO,) D2g a a
ii. More than 3.5 tons/year of nitrous oxide (N,0) D2g a o
iii. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon equivalent of perfluorocarbons (PFCs) D2g U o
iv. More than .045 tons/year of sulfur hexafluoride (SF¢) D2g E: S
v. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide equivalent of D2g
hydrochloroflourocarbons (HFCs) emissions
vi. 43 tons/year or more of methane D2h 0 o
b. The proposed action may generate 10 tons/year or more of any one designated D2g o 0
hazardous air pollutant, or 25 tons/year or more of any combination of such hazardous
air pollutants.
c. The proposed action may require a state air registration, or may produce an emissions | D2f, D2g o o
rate of total contaminants that may exceed 5 Ibs. per hour, or may include a heat
source capable of producing more than 10 million BTU’s per hour.
d. The proposed action may reach 50% of any of the thresholds in “a” through “c”, D2g o o
above.
e. The proposed action may result in the combustion or thermal treatment of more than 1 | D2s O D
ton of refuse per hour.
f. Other impacts: a O
7. Impact on Plants and Animals
The proposed action may result in a loss of flora or fauna. (See Part 1. E.2. m.-q.) [INO VIYES
If “Yes”, answer questions a - j. If “No”, move on to Section 8.
Relevant No, or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may eccur occur
a. The proposed action may cause reduction in population or loss of individuals of any E2o 14} (|
threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the Federal
government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.
b. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by E2o v 0
any rare, threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the federal
government.
c. The proposed action may cause reduction in population, or loss of individuals, of any | E2p vl O
species of special concern or conservation need, as listed by New York State or the
Federal government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.
d. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by E2p 4| |
any species of special concern and conservation need, as listed by New York State or

the Federal government.

Page 4 of 10

-83-



¢. The proposed action may diminish the capacity of a registered National Natural E3c 19| O
Landmark to support the biological community it was established to protect.
f. The proposed action may result in the removal of, or ground disturbance in, any E2n %4 O
portion of a designated significant natural community.
Source:
g. The proposed action may substantially interfere with nesting/breeding, foraging, or E2
O . . . o 2m ¥4 O
over-wintering habitat for the predominant species that occupy or use the project site.
h. The proposed action requires the conversion of more than 10 acres of forest, Elb 74| O
grassland or any other regionally or locally important habitat.
Habitat type & information source:
i. Proposed action (commercial, industrial or recreational projects, only) involves use of | D2q % O
herbicides or pesticides.
¥4 [

j. Other impacts:

8. Impact on Agricultural Resources

The proposed action may impact agricultural resources. (See Part 1. E.3.a. and b.)

If “Yes”, answer questions a - h. If “No”, move on to Section 9.

[Ino

1vEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur

a. The proposed action may impact soil classified within soil group 1 through 4 of the E2c, E3b & O
NYS Land Classification System.

b. The proposed action may sever, cross or otherwise limit access to agricultural land Ela, Elb (4] O
(includes cropland, hayfields, pasture, vineyard, orchard, etc).

¢. The proposed action may result in the excavation or compaction of the soil profile of | E3b V| O
active agricultural land.

d. The proposed action may irreversibly convert agricultural land to non-agricultural Elb, E3a 2 O
uses, either more than 2.5 acres if located in an Agricultural District, or more than 10
acres if not within an Agricultural District.

e. The proposed action may disrupt or prevent installation of an agricultural land Ela, Elb | [l
management system.

f. The proposed action may result, directly or indirectly, in increased development C2c, C3, (V4! O
potential or pressure on farmland. D2c, D2d

g. The proposed project is not consistent with the adopted municipal Farmland C2c %] a
Protection Plan.

i O

h. Other impacts:

Page 5 of 10

-84-




Impact on Aesthetic Resources

The land use of the proposed action are obviously different from, or are in
sharp contrast to, current land use patterns between the proposed project and
a scenic or aesthetic resource. (Part 1. E.1.a, E.1.b, E.3.h.)

If “Yes”, answer questions a - g. If “No”, go to Section 10.

[Ino

[/1YES

Relevant No, or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. Proposed action may be visible from any officially designated federal, state, or local | E3h 4| O
scenic or aesthetic resource.
b. The proposed action may result in the obstruction, elimination or significant E3h, C2b ¥4 O
screening of one or more officially designated scenic views.
c. The proposed action may be visible from publicly accessible vantage points: E3h
i. Seasonally (e.g., screened by summer foliage, but visible during other seasons) | O
ii. Year round & O
d. The situation or activity in which viewers are engaged while viewing the proposed E3h
action is: E2q
i. Routine travel by residents, including travel to and from work ’ v 0
ii. Recreational or tourism based activities Elc &z O
e. The proposed action may cause a diminishment of the public enjoyment and E3h 14 O
appreciation of the designated aesthetic resource.
f. There are similar projects visible within the following distance of the proposed D1la, Ela, Y4} O
project: Dl1f,Dlg
0-1/2 mile
¥ -3 mile
3-5 mile
5+ mile
g. Other impacts: (W] 0O

10. Impact on Historic and Archeological Resources
The proposed action may occur in or adjacent to a historic or archaeological
resource. (Part 1. E.3.e, f. and g.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - e. If “No”, go to Section 11.

[INo

[ ]ves

Relevant No, or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur

a. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous i

to, any buildings, archaeological site or district which is listed on the National or E3e o o

State Register of Historical Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner

of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for

listing on the State Register of Historic Places.
b. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3f o o

to, an area designated as sensitive for archaeological sites on the NY State Historic

Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory.
¢. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3g o 0

to, an archaeological site not included on the NY SHPO inventory.

Source:

Page 6 of 10

-85-




d. Other impacts: o o
If any of the above (a-d) are answered “Moderate to large impact may
€ occur”, continue with the following questions to help support conclusions in Part 3:
i. The proposed action may result in the destruction or alteration of all or part E3e, E3g, a O
of the site or property. E3f
ii. The proposed action may result in the alteration of the property’s setting or E3e, E3f, = 0
integrity. E3g, Ela,
Elb
iii. The proposed action may result in the introduction of visual elements which | E3e, E3f, o o
are out of character with the site or property, or may alter its setting. E3g, E3h,
C2,C3
11. Impact on Open Space and Recreation
The proposed action may result in a loss of recreational opportunities or a NO I:I YES
reduction of an open space resource as designated in any adopted
municipal open space plan.
(See Part 1. C.2.c,E.1.c.,E2.q.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - e. If “No”, go to Section 12.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may result in an impairment of natural functions, or “ecosystem | D2e, Elb a o
services”, provided by an undeveloped area, including but not limited to stormwater | E2h,
storage, nutrient cycling, wildlife habitat. E2m, E2o,
E2n, E2p
b. The proposed action may result in the loss of a current or future recreational resource. | C2a, Elc, o o
C2c, E2q
¢. The proposed action may eliminate open space or recreational resource in an area C2a, C2c = =
with few such resources. Elc, E2q
d. The proposed action may result in loss of an area now used informally by the C2¢, Elc o o
community as an open space resource.
e. Other impacts: & o
12. Impact on Critical Environmental Areas
The proposed action may be located within or adjacent to a critical NO D YES
environmental area (CEA). (See Part 1. E.3.d)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - ¢. If “No”, go to Section 13.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur oceur
a. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quantity of the resource or E3d = a
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.
b. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quality of the resource or E3d o o
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.
c. Other impacts: g o

Page 7 of 10

-86-




13. Impact on Transportation
The proposed action may result in a change to existing transportation systems.
(See Part 1. D.2.j)

If “Yes”, answer questions a - f. If “No”, go to Section 14.

[vINo

[ ]yes

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. Projected traffic increase may exceed capacity of existing road network. D2j a o
b. The proposed action may result in the construction of paved parking area for 500 or D2j o o
more vehicles.
¢. The proposed action will degrade existing transit access. D2j H =
d. The proposed action will degrade existing pedestrian or bicycle accommodations. D2j c |
¢. The proposed action may alter the present pattern of movement of people or goods. D2j a o
f. Other impacts: o O

14. Impact on Energy
The proposed action may cause an increase in the use of any form of energy.

(See Part 1. D.2.k)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - e. If “No”, go to Section 15.

[Y]No

[ ]yes

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may eccur oceur
a. The proposed action will require a new, or an upgrade to an existing, substation. D2k 0 o
b. The proposed action will require the creation or extension of an energy transmission | D1f, o o
or supply system to serve more than 50 single or two-family residences or to servea | D1q, D2k
commercial or industrial use.
c. The proposed action may utilize more than 2,500 MWhrs per year of electricity. D2k o O
d. The proposed action may involve heating and/or cooling of more than 100,000 square | Dlg o |
feet of building area when completed.
e. Other Impacts:

15. Impact on Noise, Odor, and Light

The proposed action may result in an increase in noise, odors, or outdoor lighting.

(See Part 1. D.2.m., n., and 0.)

[yYINO

[]vYEs

If “Yes”, answer questions a - . If “No”, go to Section 16.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part] small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may produce sound above noise levels established by local D2m O o
regulation.
b. The proposed action may result in blasting within 1,500 feet of any residence, D2m, Eld a a
hospital, school, licensed day care center, or nursing home.
¢. The proposed action may result in routine odors for more than one hour per day. D2o o O

Page 8 of 10

-87-



d. The proposed action may result in light shining onto adjoining properties. D2n a o
e. The proposed action may result in lighting creating sky-glow brighter than existing D2n,Ela O o
area conditions.
f. Other impacts: O o
16. Impact on Human Health
The proposed action may have an impact on human health from exposure IZI NO D YES
to new or existing sources of contaminants. (See Part 1.D.2.q.,E.1. d. f. g. and h.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - m. If “No”, go to Section 17.
Relevant No,or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may cceur occur
a. The proposed action is located within 1500 feet of a school, hospital, licensed day Eld a O
care center, group home, nursing home or retirement community.
b. The site of the proposed action is currently undergoing remediation. Elg, Elh o o
c. There is a completed emergency spill remediation, or a completed environmental site | Elg, E1h ] u]
remediation on, or adjacent to, the site of the proposed action.
d. The site of the action is subject to an institutional contro! limiting the use of the Elg, Elh a a
property (e.g., easement or deed restriction).
e. The proposed action may affect institutional control measures that were put in place Elg, Elh a o
to ensure that the site remains protective of the environment and human health.
f. The proposed action has adequate control measures in place to ensure that future D2t o o
generation, treatment and/or disposal of hazardous wastes will be protective of the
environment and human health.
g. The proposed action involves construction or modification of a solid waste D2q, E1f = o
management facility.
h. The proposed action may result in the unearthing of solid or hazardous waste. D2q, E1f a i
i. The proposed action may result in an increase in the rate of disposal, or processing, of | D2r, D2s o o
solid waste.
j. The proposed action may result in excavation or other disturbance within 2000 feet of | E1f, Elg o o
a site used for the disposal of solid or hazardous waste. Elh
k. The proposed action may result in the migration of explosive gases from a landfill Elf, Elg o =
site to adjacent off site structures.
1. The proposed action may result in the release of contaminated leachate from the D2s, Elf, o il
project site. D2r
m. Other impacts:

Page 9 of 10

-88-




17. Consistency with Community Plans
The proposed action is not consistent with adopted land use plans.
(See Part 1. C.1,C.2. and C.3.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h. If “No”, go to Section 18.

[v]No

[ ]vEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur

a. The proposed action’s land use components may be different from, or in sharp C2,C3,Dla O a
contrast to, current surrounding land use pattern(s). Ela, Elb

b. The proposed action will cause the permanent population of the city, town or village | C2 o o
in which the project is located to grow by more than 5%.

c. The proposed action is inconsistent with local land use plans or zoning regulations. C2,C2,C3 o o

d. The proposed action is inconsistent with any County plans, or other regional land use | C2, C2 o o
plans.

e. The proposed action may cause a change in the density of development that is not C3,Dlec, a a
supported by existing infrastructure or is distant from existing infrastructure. D1d, D1f,

D1d, Elb

f. The proposed action is located in an area characterized by low density development C4, D2¢, D2d g &
that will require new or expanded public infrastructure. D2j

g. The proposed action may induce secondary development impacts (e.g., residential or | C2a o a
commercial development not included in the proposed action)

h. Other: o o

18. Consistency with Community Character
The proposed project is inconsistent with the existing community character.
(See Part 1. C.2,C.3,D.2, E.3)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - g. If “No”, proceed to Part 3.

[vINo

[ JvEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may replace or eliminate existing facilities, structures, or areas E3e, E3f, E3g = =
of historic importance to the community.
b. The proposed action may create a demand for additional community services (e.g. C4 o =
schools, police and fire)
c. The proposed action may displace affordable or low-income housing in an area where | C2, C3, Dif O m]
there is a shortage of such housing. Dlg,Ela
d. The proposed action may interfere with the use or enjoyment of officially recognized | C2, E3 o o
or designated public resources.
e. The proposed action is inconsistent with the predominant architectural scale and C2,C3 O o
character.
f. Proposed action is inconsistent with the character of the existing natural landscape. C2,C3 o O
Ela, Elb
E2g, E2h
m] u]

g. Other impacts:

PRINT FULL FORM

Page 10 of 10

-89-



Agency Use Only [IfApplicable]

Project: | [, Jasun 550z Kot
Date: #MM T

=

Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 3 - Evaluation of the Magnitude and Importance of Project Impacts
and
Determination of Significance

Part 3 provides the reasons in support of the determination of significance. The lead agency must complete Part 3 for every question
in Part 2 where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where there is a need to explain why a particular
element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse environmental impact.

Based on the analysis in Part 3, the lead agency must decide whether to require an environmental impact statement to further assess
the proposed action or whether available information is sufficient for the lead agency to conclude that the proposed action will not
have a significant adverse environmental impact. By completing the certification on the next page, the lead agency can complete its

determination of significance.

Reasons Supporting This Determination:
To complete this section:

o  Identify the impact based on the Part 2 responses and describe its magnitude. Magnitude considers factors such as severity,
size or extent of an impact.

o Assess the importance of the impact. Importance relates to the geographic scope, duration, probability of the impact
occurring, number of people affected by the impact and any additional environmental consequences if the impact were to
occur.

¢ The assessment should take into consideration any design element or project changes.

o Repeat this process for each Part 2 question where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where
there is a need to explain why a particular element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse
environmental impact.

o  Provide the reason(s) why the impact may, or will not, result in a significant adverse environmental impact

e For Conditional Negative Declarations identify the specific condition(s) imposed that will modify the proposed action so that
no significant adverse environmental impacts will result.

e  Attach additional sheets, as needed.

Determination of Significance - Type 1 and Unlisted Actions

SEQR Status: [v] Type 1 [ Unlisted

Identify portions of EAF completed for this Project: [] Part 1 90 "/ Part 2 [/] Part 3

FEAF 2019



Upon review of the information recorded on this EAF, as noted, plus this additional support information
Revised Site Plan of 16 April 2020

and considering both the magnitude and importance of each identified potential impact, it is the conclusion of the
Town of Pamelia Planning Board as lead agency that:

[/] A. This project will result in no significant adverse impacts on the environment, and, therefore, an environmental impact
statement need not be prepared. Accordingly, this negative declaration is issued.

[ 1 B. Although this project could have a significant adverse impact on the environment, that impact will be avoided or
substantially mitigated because of the following conditions which will be required by the lead agency:

There will, therefore, be no significant adverse impacts from the project as conditioned, and, therefore, this conditioned negative
declaration is issued. A conditioned negative declaration may be used only for UNLISTED actions (see 6 NYCRR 617.7(d)).

[ ] c. This Project may result in one or more significant adverse impacts on the environment, and an environmental impact
statement must be prepared to further assess the impact(s) and possible mitigation and to explore alternatives to avoid or reduce those
impacts. Accordingly, this positive declaration is issued.

Name of Action: OYA - Wayside Drive Solar Project

Name of Lead Agency: Town of Pamelia Planning Board

Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: walter VanTassel

Title of Responsible Officer: zgning Enforcement Officer § 4
Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: 5 — ! Date: =7 ;o 4.

5 - geney /Ajl?ﬁj(;h !/ﬁsm'/n./;m{’?j 5,//2]'7@
Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer) Date: '

For Further Information:

Contact Person: Walter VanTassel

Address: 25859 NYS Route 37, Watertown NY 13601
Telephone Number: (315) 785-9793

E-mail: pamclerk@nnymail.com
For Type 1 Actions and Conditioned Negative Declarations, a copy of this Notice is sent to:

Chief Executive Officer of the political subdivision in which the action will be principally located (e.g., Town / City / Village of)
Other involved agencies (if any)

Applicant (if any)

Environmental Notice Bulletin: http://www.dec.ny.gov/enb/enb.html

PRINT FULL FORM Page 2 of 2

-91-



00§=,1 TS

0511 IVOS

.[3ONVE

N1S1a d3s0doy 2

R b
QYL B IO O

t 1)

D81= O i

002-S YOS || e e s e S e o S M B !

WIE3dWI

"HIBANN ONMAVEA SLINM T Qi 13 20w e B ST SIS 5304 20 ALLINVIYO O I V01 9

e s o o S e

ZO-AN-6L0Z DT LT AT M R W Tt ERL Ll ) S S PR T
: e s v e S s e S

N L3O || e T e e S st e

e T o) S b

™ W ki)

A8 NMVHO ‘AB Q3NI3HD

NVY1d 31IS ) Sarvanisia 3007
{81808 TN-CYOU-5OYd!
ONILLINY3d == SoRveNISHD LI
I1LL ONWAVYO SIUIY SY'Y YIHY ONYUIM
{1458 017! 53wV 500D OB by b ]
086126°S2- 'TrSOLO Y 'SdD S o I ey
B STADY L9T9 VIYY TANYYS ATNIHEND
FOZEL AN ‘NMOLUILYM Savov b D 3
Hd 30ISAVM I2vee Sy Vauv 0253wy 0wva
.mo mo—w><>> <>O 13 90ST HIONT) OvOu $53007
1302 HLOWA OvOl §S320¥
o 3orVI819 10401 524

*SS3YAAY ONY 3WYN LD3Ir0Ud

sz

IONVLSIO 33d OL HINHOASNVYL

ONINZIYDS WOTIA

(Ut 10043 Y3UY JOVHIA0D TINGOM

(1NI8d 100! % 30¥3/0D TINGON

0001=.} WIS

Y3U3MEId 3ONTA

[ | Srsomarnsmosivooe | wew | %] Youv M aIoN3

| TR T R | Voo | 10 | VIUY 204 0L

| W | ot csimimn 100 | ok | B Foven uw

.|5.| 0200V $ILON SMINZ IO MNSIA e | i AL0 53N

| o ouvaviao owusm | orzieiet | 0 Woud

- ML 2sva [A2w NOLYENSINGD 5INTOR

i

NOILOMMLSNOD MO 10N | LT

NOISIQ AYVYNINNIN ]

R’ 321 ONLS

sran 116 anaciy

MOOT BBE-HZ1D9dL) ONNB © LNALrO ONY 13a0M INaSKN

NnSETVL e

STRToR

¥ AV 0005 10V} 3715 W31SAS

30 M QOF'S6FL £0Q) 3715 WaLSAS

THVNRIE RAING

F— ™ {RNIMXYA) IHDI3H DHICTHNG

YN Y3130 VLM

VPL-t-60YL {9 1-60p L, 140005 avauvad

101 130uvd 140005 QEVA IS BOIWXI

13 0005 OUVA 3015 BOR2AM

ldoc0Cre QYYA INOYS

¥ FINVEUNLSIC ONVINEYS Tredid XVIN

IZZOINNVI v2YBYE ONY SYTOHOIN wer 35v3702 101 X
UINMO ALUIOYd VIT3NYd 30 NAOL :

951°1X3 8SEE OPY O3 1+

L1001 "AN HYOA M3N "3AV NOSIOVH S£¢

(Y] N3OS 3u- U OOV
e IO

HYANM HSIDOA

Tuuzal |
STINV 92 3O ONIBLS AN —

L33r0Yd YAC

SN ¥NOLNDD

ALULD AD
INO A8t MEN

INMVAK ALNUIN DMUSHA

QY3HNIAC!
NN AN GE$0OU

T oo o |

3MTAH 0350008d

m«._owo}o s

WOD'HYIOSYAO MM
085¢ ¥8Z 598 |+ °L

TIod AN ONLSHE

L1008 AN MNYOA MIN
YOO HLy "JAV NOSIQYI se¢

dTAN ¥YI0S YAO

‘¥3d013A30

X304 W¥130 X

o1 $33us oNusea| | ¢
vauv a31s3u0: omsna || | 370d ¥RHOTIAZOMAN
Gvou $$300v 0330d0ud || [ F10¢ AL MIN
Qvou OMLSIXA iy
sDvvervanLe) || W01 48 soveuas || ————-
SOvd LEARANOS ECIEFENT)
SN ONIMYIO 00K

ANYONNOS 12DV

NY1d A3

INTISYH € ANOL'EY MIN Y




m ? F. s
i:'-.-ab’/ L‘ i

A meeting of Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was
convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 800 Starbuck Avenue in
the City of Watertown, Jefferson County, New York on June 4, 2020, at 9:00 o’clock am.,,
local time.

ENVIRONMENTAL RESOLUTION

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman and, upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT:

The following resolution was offered by , seconded by , to

wit:
Resolution No. 06.04.2020.03

RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT ACTION TOWARD THE
ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND LEASING
OF A CERTAIN COMMERCIAL PROJECT FOR OYA WAYSIDE
DRIVE LLC (“OYA”) WILL NOT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT
ON THE ENVIRONMENT.

WHEREAS, Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 369 of the
1971 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 892-e of said General Municipal
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities,
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound
commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and

-93- 1



DRAF.

economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more
“projects” (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed,
reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the
obligation to purchase; and

WHEREAS, OYA has presented an application (the “Application”) to the Agency, a
copy of which was presented at this meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of
the Agency, requesting that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “Project”)
consisting of the following: (A) (1) the acquisition of an interest in certain parcels of land
located in the Town of Pamelia, to wit: tax parcel 74.09-1-6, Jefferson County, New York
(the “Land”), and (2) construction on the Land of a 5 megawatt solar photo-voltaic
community distribution generation facility (the “Facility”) to be operated by the Company
(the Land and the Facility collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”; (B) the granting
of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of section 854(14) of the Act) with
respect to the foregoing, including exemption from certain real estate taxes (the “Financial
Assistance”); and (C) the lease with an obligation to purchase or sale of the Project Facility
to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and agreed
upon by the Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Agency is a local agency pursuant to the New York State
Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQRA"), ECL Section 8-0101, et seq, and
implementing regulations, 6 NYCRR Part 617 (the “Regulations”); and

WHEREAS, undertaking the Project is an Action as defined by SEQRA; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Pamelia conducted a review of the Project pursuant to the
State Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQR”) and although the Agency was not
included as an involved agency in the review conducted by the Town of Pamelia, a
complete copy of the Full Environmental Assessment Form reviewed by the Town (the
“EAF") has been filed with the Agency and has been provided to the members of the

Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has considered the Project and the EAF, together with the
Agency’s knowledge of the area surrounding the Project, and such further information as is
available to the Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has reviewed the classifications of actions contained in the
Regulations; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has determined that the Action is a Type I Action, as that

term is defined in the Regulations, and that although the Agency was not included as an
involved agency in the coordinated review conducted by the Town of Pamelia, the Agency

-94- 2



has reviewed the EAF and concurs with the findings of the Town of Pamelia that the Project
will not result in a significant environmental impact.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Project is a Type | Action pursuant to SEQRA.

Section 2. The Agency has reviewed the environmental review conducted by the
Town of Pamelia and concurs with the findings of the Town of Pamelia.

Section 3. The Project will not result in a significant adverse environmental
impact.

Section 4. Preparation of an Environmental Impact Statement is not required.

Section 5. The basis for this determination is set forth in Part 2 of the

Environmental Assessment Form, attached as Attachment A hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Section 6. A Negative Declaration of significant adverse environmental impact
shall be prepared, filed, distributed and published in accord with 6 NYCRR shall be filed at
the Agency as required by 6 NYCRR Section 617.12(b)(2).

Section 7. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on
roll call, which resulted as follows:

David J. Converse VOTING
John Jennings VOTING
Robert E. Aliasso, Jr. VOTING
W. Edward Walldroff VOTING
Paul Warneck VOTING
William Johnson VOTING
Lisa L’Huillier VOTING

95. 3



The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) ss.

I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of the Jefferson County Industrial
Development Agency (the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the
foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the
Resolution contained therein, held on June 4, 2020, with the original thereof on file in my
office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of
such Resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related
to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the
Public Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general
public and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with
such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency
present through said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full
force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the
Agency this 4th day of June, 2020.

Donald C. Alexander
Chief Executive Officer

-96- 4



s,
Y \

7}

3

I -’J I:’B .;
PRELIMINARY INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION, ' ;"\ j | B

4.4

A meeting of Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency”) was
convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 800 Starbuck Avenue in
the City of Watertown, Jefferson County, New York on June 4, 2020 at 9:00 o'clock am,,
local time.

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman and, upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT:

The following resolution was offered by seconded by , to

wit:
Resolution No. 06.04.2020.04

RESOLUTION TAKING PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL ACTION
TOWARD THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION,
AND LEASING OF A CERTAIN COMMERCIAL PROJECT FOR OYA
WAYSIDE DRIVE LLC (THE “COMPANY”) AND AUTHORIZING
THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A PRELIMINARY
AGREEMENT WITH THE COMPANY WITH RESPECT TO SUCH
TRANSACTION.

WHEREAS, Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency") is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 369 of the
1971 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 892-e of said General Municipal
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the
"Act") to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities,
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound
commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and



WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more
"projects" (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed,
reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the
obligation to purchase; and

WHEREAS, OYA Wayside Drive LLC (the “Company”) has presented an application
(the “Application”) to the Agency, a copy of which was presented at this meeting and copies
of which are on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the Agency consider
undertaking a project (the “Project”) consisting of the following: (A) (1) the acquisition of
an interest in a certain parcel of land located in the Town of Pamelia, to wit: tax parcel
74.09-1-6, Jefferson County, New York (the “Land”), and (2) construction on the Land of a 5
megawatt solar photo-voltaic community distribution generation facility (the “Facility”) to
be operated by the Company (the Land and the Facility collectively referred to as the
“Project Facility”); (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of
section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including exemption from certain
real estate taxes (the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the lease with an obligation to
purchase or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other person as may be
designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to
representations by the Company that (A) the granting by the Agency of the Financial
Assistance with respect to the Project will be an inducement to the Company to undertake
the Project in Jefferson County, New York, (B) the completion of the Project Facility will not
result in the removal of a plant or facility of the Company or any other proposed occupant
of the Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area of the State of
New York or in the abandonment of a plant or facility of any proposed occupant of the
Project Facility (other than the Company) located in the State of New York and (C) the
completion of the Project Facility will not result in the abandonment of one or more plants
or facilities of the Company located in the State of New York; and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to encourage the Company to preserve and advance
the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of
Jefferson County, New York by undertaking the Project in Jefferson County, New York; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter
43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act"}), and the
regulations (the "Regulations") adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of
Environmental Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act,
"SEQRA"), by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on June 4, 2020 (the "SEQR
Resolution"), the Agency has determined that the Project will not have a significant effect
on the environment and, therefore, that an environmental impact statement is not required
to be prepared with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, any approval of the Project contained herein is
contingent upon a determination by the members of the Agency to proceed with the Project

98-



following satisfaction of the public hearing and notice requirements and other procedural
requirements contained in Section 859-a of the Act that relate to the Project; and

WHEREAS, although the resolution authorizing the Project has not yet been drafted
for approval by the Agency, a preliminary agreement (the "Preliminary Agreement")
relative to the proposed undertaking of the Project by the Agency has been presented for
approval by the Agency.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Agency has reviewed the Application and based upon the
representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Application and at this meeting
and, based thereon, the Agency hereby makes the following findings and determinations
with respect to the Project:

(A)  The Project constitutes a "project” within the meaning of the Act; and

(B)  The completion of the Project Facility will not result in the removal of
a plant or facility of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project
Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area of the State of New
York or in the abandonment of a plant or facility of any proposed occupant of the
Project Facility (other than the Company) located in the State of New York, and the
completion of the Project Facility will not result in the abandonment of one or more
plants or facilities of the Company located in the State of New York; and

(Q The Project Facility will not constitute a project where facilities or
property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods or services to
customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third of the
total cost of the Project; and

(D)  The granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to
the Project, through the granting of the various tax exemptions described in Section
2(D) of this Resolution, will promote the job opportunities, health, general
prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Jefferson County, New York
and the State of New York and improve their standard of living, and thereby serve
the public purposes of the Act; and

(E)  Upon compliance with the provisions of the Act, the Agency would
then be authorized under the Act to undertake the Project in order to promote the
job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the
inhabitants of Jefferson County, New York and the State of New York and improve
their standard of living.

Section 2. If, following full compliance with the requirements of the Act, including
the public hearing requirements set forth in Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency adopts a

-99- 3



future resolution (the "Future Resolution") determining to proceed with the Project and to
grant the Financial Assistance with respect thereto and the Company complies with all
conditions set forth in the Preliminary Agreement and the Future Resolution, then the
Agency will (A) acquire an interest in the Project Facility from the Company pursuant to a
deed, lease agreement or other documentation to be negotiated between the Agency and
the Company (the "Acquisition Agreement"); (B) renovate the Facility and acquire and
install the Equipment in the Facility or elsewhere on the Land; (C) lease with the obligation
to purchase or sell the Project Facility to the Company pursuant to a lease agreement or an
installment sale agreement (hereinafter the "Project Agreement") between the Agency and
the Company whereby the Company will be obligated, among other things, (1) to make
payments to the Agency in amounts and at times so that such payments will be adequate to
enable the Agency to timely pay all amounts due on the Acquisition Agreement and (2) to
pay all costs incurred by the Agency with respect to the Project and/or the Project Facility,
including all costs of operation and maintenance, all taxes and other governmental charges,
any required payments in lieu of taxes and the reasonable fees and expenses incurred by
the Agency with respect to or in connection with the Project and/or the Project Facility,
and (D) provide the Financial Assistance with respect to the Project, in accordance with the
Agency's uniform tax exemption policy, including exemption from real estate taxes (but not
including special assessments and special ad valorem levies) relating to the Project Facility,
subject to the obligation of the Company to make payments in lieu of taxes with respect to
the Project Facility, all as contemplated by the Preliminary Agreement and the Future
Resolution.

Section 3. If the Agency adopts the Future Resolution, the undertaking and
completing of the Project by the Agency, and the granting of the Financial Assistance with
respect to the Project as contemplated by Section 2 of this Resolution, shall be subject to:
(A) the determination by the members of the Agency to proceed with the Project following
a determination by the members of the Agency that all requirements of SEQRA that relate
to the Project have been fulfilled; (B) execution and delivery by the Company of the
Preliminary Agreement, which sets forth certain conditions for the undertaking and
completing of the Project by the Agency, and satisfaction by the Company of all the terms
and conditions of the Preliminary Agreement applicable to the Company; (C) agreement by
the Agency and the Company on mutually acceptable terms for the conveyance of the Land
to the Agency; (D) agreement between the Company and the Agency as to payment by the
Company of payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project Facility, together with the
administrative fee of the Agency with respect to the Project; (E) a determination by the
members of the Agency to proceed with the granting of the Financial Assistance with
respect to the Project following a determination by the members of the Agency that the
public hearing and notice requirements and other procedural requirements contained in
Section 859-a of the Act have been complied with; (F) the Agency's uniform tax exemption
policy or if any portion of the Financial Assistance to be granted by the Agency with respect
to the Project is not consistent with the Agency's uniform tax exemption policy, the Agency
must follow the procedures for deviation from such policy set forth in Section 874(b) of the
Act prior to granting such portion of the Financial Assistance; and (G) the following
additional condition(s): None.

-100- 4



Yo Wi """.":-?T

Section 4. The form, terms and substance of the Preliminary Agreement (in
substantially the form presented to this meeting and attached hereto) are in all respects
approved, and the First Chairman or Vice Chairman, Executive Director or Deputy
Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute
and deliver said Preliminary Agreement in the name and on behalf of the Agency, said
Preliminary Agreement to be substantially in the form presented to this meeting, with such
changes therein as shall be approved by the officer executing same on behalf of the Agency,
the execution thereof by such officer to constitute conclusive evidence of such officer's
approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the form now before this meeting.

Section 5. From and after the execution and delivery of the Preliminary Agreement,
the officers, agents and employees of the Agency are hereby authorized, empowered and
directed to proceed with the undertakings provided for therein on the part of the Agency
and are further authorized to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents
as may be necessary or convenient to carry out and comply with the terms and provisions
of the Preliminary Agreement as executed.

Section 6. Joseph W. Russell, of the law firm of Barclay Damon LLP of Watertown,
New York is hereby appointed Counsel to the Agency with respect to all matters in
connection with the Project. Counsel for the Agency is hereby authorized, at the expense of
the Company, to work with the Company, counsel to the Company and others to prepare
for submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to effect the transactions
contemplated by this Resolution.

Section 7. The Agency hereby authorizes the Executive Director of the Agency,
prior to the granting of any Financial Assistance with respect to the Project, after
consultation with Counsel, (A) to establish a time, date and place for a public hearing of the
Agency to hear all persons interested in the location and nature of the Project Facility and
the proposed Financial Assistance being contemplated by the Agency with respect to the
Project, said public hearing to be held in the city, town or village where the Project Facility
will be located; (B) to cause notice of such public hearing to be given to the public by
publishing a notice of such hearing in a newspaper of general circulation available to
residents of the governmental units where the Project Facility is to be located, such notice
to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act and to be published no fewer
than ten (10) days prior to the date established for such public hearing; (C) to cause notice
of said public hearing to be given to the chief executive officer of the county and each city,
town, village and school district in which the Project Facility is or is to be located no fewer
than ten (10) days prior to the date established for said public hearing; (D) to conduct such
public hearing; and (E) to cause a report of said public hearing fairly summarizing the
views presented at said public hearing to be promptly prepared and cause copies of said
report to be made available to the members of the Agency.

Section 8. The First Chairman, Vice Chairman and Executive Director of the Agency
are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company
and to do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to
implement the provisions of this Resolution.

-101- >



Section 9. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on
roll call, which resulted as follows:

David ]. Converse VOTING
John Jennings VOTING
Robert E. Aliasso, Ir. VOTING
W. Edward Walldroff VOTING
Paul Warneck VOTING
William Johnson VOTING
Lisa L’Huillier VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON } ss.:

I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of the Jefferson County Industrial
Development Agency (the "Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have compared the
foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the
Resolution contained therein, held on June 4, 2020 with the original thereof on file in my
office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such proceedings of the Agency and of
such Resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same related
to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respect duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the
Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general
public and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was given in accordance with
such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency
present through said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in full
force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the
Agency this ___ day of ,2020.

Donald C. Alexander, Chief Executive Officer

-102- 6



i '
PRELIMINARY AGREEMENT E R A |

THIS PRELIMINARY AGREEMENT made as of , 2020 between JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the "Agency"), a public benefit
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, and OYA
WAYSIDE DRIVE LLC (the "Company"), a limited liability company, organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Delaware;

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Agency is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the New
York State Industrial Development Agency Act, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the
General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of the State of New York, as
amended (the "Enabling Act") and Chapter 369 of the 1971 Laws of the State of New York,
as amended, constituting Section 892-e of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and
the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Act") to undertake the
acquisition, construction, reconstruction and installation of one or more "projects” (as said
quoted term is defined in the Act) and to lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sell the
same upon such terms and conditions as the Agency may deem advisable; and

WHEREAS, the purposes of the Act are to promote industry and develop trade and
thereby advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of
the inhabitants of Jefferson County, New York and the State of New York, to improve their
prosperity and standard of living and to prevent unemployment and economic
deterioration; and

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on June 4, 2020
(the "Preliminary Inducement Resolution"), the Agency made a preliminary determination,
subject to numerous conditions, to accept an application (the "Application") from the
Company requesting that the Agency undertake a project (the "Project") consisting of the
following: (A) (1) the acquisition of an interest in a certain parcel of land located in the
Town of Pamelia, to wit: tax parcel 74.09-1-6, Jefferson County, New York (the “Land”), and
(2) construction on the Land of a 5 megawatt solar photo-voltaic community distribution
generation facility (the Facility”) to be operated by the Company (the Land and the Facility
collectively referred to as the “Project Facility”; (B) the granting of certain “financial
assistance” (within the meaning of section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the
foregoing, including exemption from certain real estate taxes (the “Financial Assistance”);
and (C) the lease with an obligation to purchase or sale of the Project Facility to the
Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by
the Agency; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter
43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act"), and the
regulations (the "Regulations") adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of
Environmental Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act,

1

-103-



Is.::ral\_ aa,—.r,,q] Jq Fn.n "

,__, ' J_._{i::if »1
"SEQRA"), by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on June 4, 2020 (the "SEQR
Resolution"), the Agency has determined that the Project will not have a significant effect
on the environment and, therefore, that an environmental impact statement is not required
to be prepared with respect to the Project;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the
Agency and the Company agree as follows:

Article 1. Representations.

Among the representations which have resulted in the execution of this Preliminary
Agreement are the following:

Section 1.01. The Company hereby represents to the Agency that:

(A)  The completion of the Project Facility will not result in the
removal of a plant or facility of the Company or any other proposed occupant
of the Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area
of the State of New York or in the abandonment of a plant or facility of any
proposed occupant of the Project Facility (other than the Company) located
in the State of New York and, although the completion of the Project Facility
may result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the
Company located in the State of New York, such abandonment is reasonably
necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Company in its
industry.

(B)  The Project Facility will not constitute a project where facilities
or property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods or services
to customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-
third of the total cost of the Project Facility.

(C)  The Project site is located entirely within the boundaries of
Jefferson County, New York.

(D) The granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with
respect to the Project, through the granting of certain exemptions from
taxation with respect to the Project, as further described in Section 2(D) of
the Preliminary Inducement Resolution, will encourage and assist the
Company in locating the Project Facility in Jefferson County, New York, and
thereby serve the public purposes of the Act by promoting job opportunities
in Jefferson County, New York.

(E) It is estimated at the present time that the costs of the
planning, development, acquisition, construction and installation of the
Project Facility (collectively, the "Project Costs") will be approximately
$10,321,000.00.

-104-



A 4

“(F)  The Company will ensure that the acquisition, construction,
installation and operation of the Project Facility will comply with all
applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations (the
applicability of same to be determined both as if the Agency were the owner
of the Project Facility and as if the Company and not the Agency were the
owner of the Project Facility), and the Company will obtain all necessary
approvals and permits required thereunder.

Section 1.02. By the Preliminary Inducement Resolution, the Agency has
approved the execution of this Preliminary Agreement. The Agency intends this
Preliminary Agreement to constitute its official binding commitment, subject to the
terms hereof, to accept the Application; provided, however, that this Preliminary
Agreement shall not commit the Agency to undertake the Project or to grant to the
Company any Financial Assistance with respect to the Project unless and until the
Agency shall decide to undertake the Project and to grant such Financial Assistance
following a determination by the Agency that the procedural requirements of
Section 859-a of the Act that relate to the Project have been fulfilled.

Section 1.03. Pursuant to SEQRA, the Agency has made a preliminary
determination that the Project will not have a "significant effect on the
environment" (within the meaning of SEQRA) and, therefore, that an environmental
impact statement is not required to be prepared with respect to the Project.

Article 2. Undertakings on the Part of the Agency.

Based upon the statements, representations and undertakings of the Company and
subject to the conditions set forth herein, the Agency agrees as follows:

Section 2.01. If, following full compliance with the requirements of the Act,
including the public hearing requirements set forth in Section 859-a of the Act, the
Agency adopts a future resolution (the "Future Resolution") determining to proceed
with the Project and to grant the Financial Assistance with respect thereto and the
Company complies with all conditions set forth in this Preliminary Agreement and
the Future Resolution, then the Agency will undertake the Project and will grant the
Financial Assistance relating to the Project; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that the
foregoing obligation of the Agency to undertake the Project and to grant the
Financial Assistance relating to the Project is subject to the conditions hereinafter
contained in this Preliminary Agreement including, but not limited to, the following
conditions:

(A)  An interest in the Project Facility shall be acquired by the
Agency from the Company pursuant to a deed, lease agreement or other
documentation to be negotiated between the Agency and the Company
(hereinafter, the "Acquisition Agreement") which contains terms mutually
acceptable to the Agency and the Company for the conveyance of an interest

3

-105-



a5 P
N |
&

in the Project Facility to the Agency. Any Equipment acquired by the
Company prior to the execution and delivery of the Project Agreement (as
hereinafter defined) shall be conveyed to the Agency by a bill of sale from the
Company to the Agency. After the Project Agreement (as hereinafter
defined) has been executed and delivered by the Agency and the Company
then, pursuant to the Project Agreement, any Equipment acquired by the
Company as part of the Project will be acquired by the Company as agent of
the Agency. The lease with an obligation to purchase or sale of the Project
Facility by the Agency to the Company shall be effected by a lease agreement
or an installment sale agreement (hereinafter, the "Project Agreement")
between the Agency and the Company whereby the Company will be
obligated, among other things, to make payments to the Agency in amounts
and at such times so that such payments will be adequate to enable the
Agency to timely pay all amounts due on the Acquisition Agreement. The
Acquisition Agreement and the Project Agreement and any other documents
to be executed by the Agency in connection with the Project (collectively, the
"Project Documents") shall, in all respects, comply with the requirements of,
and limitations contained in, the Act and shall further specifically provide
that the obligations of the Agency thereunder are payable solely from the
revenues derived by the Agency from the sale, lease or other disposition of
the Project Facility; that the obligations of the Agency thereunder shall not be
a general obligation of the Agency and shall not constitute an indebtedness
or pledge of the general credit of the Agency; that no beneficiary of the
obligations of the Agency thereunder shall have the right to compel any
exercise of the taxing power of the Agency (if any), or of the State of New
York or any political subdivision thereof, including Jefferson County, New
York; and that the obligations of the Agency thereunder shall not create a
debt or loan of credit of Jefferson County, New York or the State of New York,
but such obligations shall be a special obligation of the Agency secured and
payable solely as provided in the Acquisition Agreement or the Project
Agreement, as the case may be, and such facts shall be plainly stated in each
of such documents;

(B) The Company shall have executed the Project Agreement
between the Agency and the Company, the terms of which shall be acceptable
in form and content to the Company and the Agency, and pursuant to which,
among other things, the Company shall be obligated to pay all costs incurred
by the Agency with respect to the Project and/or the Project Facility,
including all costs of operation and maintenance of the Project Facility, all
taxes and other governmental charges, any required payments in lieu of
taxes, and the reasonable fees and expenses incurred by the Agency with
respect to or in connection with the Project and/or the Project Facility;

(C)  No event shall have occurred which constitutes (or which after
notice or lapse of time or both would constitute) an event of default under
the Project Agreement;

-106-



(D)  The Company shall provide the Agency with all information
and statements which may be required by the Agency in order to facilitate
compliance by the Agency with SEQRA;

(E) The Agency shall receive, in form and substance satisfactory to
the Agency, such rulings, approvals, resolutions, consents, certificates,
opinions of counsel and other instruments and proceedings as shall be
specified by the Agency in connection with the Project and the various
documents to be executed in connection with the Project, such rulings,
approvals, resolutions, consents, certificates, opinions of counsel and other
instruments and proceedings to be obtained from counsel to the Agency and
such other governmental and nongovernmental agencies and entities as may
have or assert competence or jurisdiction over or interest in matters
pertaining thereto;

(F)  Agreements shall be made as to (1) payments by the Company
to or on behalf of the Agency of amounts in lieu of real property taxes, (2)
indemnity by the Company of the Agency and the members and officers of
the Agency, and (3) payment by the Company of the expenses incurred by the
Agency in connection with the Project (including counsel fees and out-of-
pocket expenses) and the administrative fee of the Agency, and such
agreements shall be satisfactory in form and substance to the Agency;

(G)  The Agency shall have made a determination to proceed with
the granting of the Financial Assistance following a determination by the
Agency that all the public hearing and notice requirements and other
procedural requirements of Section 859-a of the Act that relate to the Project
have been complied with;

(H) If any portion of the Financial Assistance to be granted by the
Agency with respect to the Project is not consistent with the Agency's
uniform tax exemption policy, the Agency must follow the procedures for
deviation from such policy set forth in Section 874(b) of the Act prior to
granting such portion of the Financial Assistance; and

(D The following additional conditions: None.

Section 2.02. The obligations of the Agency pursuant to this Preliminary

Agreement are subject to the conditions elsewhere contained in this Preliminary
Agreement and to the additional condition that the Agency shall not undertake the
Project, nor grant any Financial Assistance with respect to the Project, unless and
until the Agency shall have complied with the provisions of SEQRA.

Section 2.03. Subject to the conditions stated in this Preliminary Agreement,

the Agency, from time to time, will adopt, or cause to be adopted, such proceedings

5

-107-



, B M W
il o y ]

-4 Sy el i

Bt & A AN L

and authorize the execution of such documents as may be necessary or advisable
for: (A) the authorization, undertaking and completion of the Project; and (B) the
sale or lease of the Project Facility to the Company, all as shall be authorized by law
and be mutually satisfactory to the Agency and the Company.

Section 2.04. The Agency will take or cause to be taken such other acts and
adopt such further proceedings as may be required to implement the aforesaid

undertakings or as it may deem appropriate in pursuance thereof.

Article 3. Undertakings on the Part of the Company.

Based upon the statements, representations and undertakings of the Agency and
subject to the conditions set forth herein, the Company agrees as follows:

Section 3.01. Contemporaneously with the execution and delivery by the
Agency of the Acquisition Agreement, the Company will enter into the Project
Agreement with the Agency containing the terms and conditions described in
Section 2.01 hereof. The Company agrees that the Company will pay all of the
Project Costs and shall not be entitled to any reimbursement for any such payment
from the Agency. THE AGENCY MAKES NO WARRANTY, EITHER EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, THAT THE PROJECT FACILITY WILL BE SUITABLE FOR THE COMPANY'S
PURPOSES OR NEEDS.

Section 3.02. The Company hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the Agency
(and its members, officers, agents and employees) harmless from all losses,
expenses, claims and liabilities arising out of or based on labor, services, materials
and supplies, including equipment, ordered or used in connection with the
acquisition, construction and installation of the Project Facility, including any
expenses incurred by the Agency (and its members, officers, agents and employees)
in defending any claims, suits or actions which may arise as a result of any of the
foregoing. The Company shall not permit to stand, and will, at its own expense, take
steps reasonably necessary to remove, any mechanic's or other liens against the
Project Facility for labor or material furnished in connection with the acquisition,
construction and installation of the Project Facility.

Section 3.03. The Company hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the
Agency (and its members, officers, agents and employees) harmless from any and all
(A) claims and liabilities for the loss or damage to property or any injury to or death
of any person that may be occasioned subsequent to the date hereof by any cause
whatsoever in relation to the Project and/or the Project Facility, including any
expenses incurred by the Agency (and its members, officers, agents and employees)
in defending any claims, suits or actions which may arise as a result of the foregoing;
and (B) claims and liability arising from or expenses incurred in connection with the
Project or the Agency's acquisition, construction and installation, owning, leasing
and/or sale of the Project Facility, including all causes of action and attorneys' fees
and any other expenses incurred in defending any suits or actions which may arise

6

-108-



“ Fo = A
& % R 5
Weiaiy b L £y f

as a result of any of the foregoing. The Company shall include the Agency (and its
members, officers, agents and employees) as a named insured under all public
liability insurance policies obtained by the Company with respect to the Project.

Section 3.04. The Company will take such further action and adopt such
further proceedings as may be required to implement its aforesaid undertakings or
as it may deem appropriate in pursuance thereof.

Article 4. General Provisions.

Section 4.01. All commitments of the Agency under Article 2 hereof and of
the Company under Article 3 hereof (excepting the obligations of the Company set
forth in Sections 3.02 and 3.03 hereof, which shall survive the termination of this
Preliminary Agreement) are subject to the condition that the following events shall
have occurred not later than two (2) years from the date hereof (or such other date
as shall be mutually satisfactory to the Agency and the Company):

(A)  The Agency and the Company shall have agreed on mutually
acceptable terms and conditions of the Acquisition Agreement, the Project
Agreement and any other agreements referred to in Articles 2 or 3 hereof;

(B)  All necessary governmental approvals shall be obtained; and

(C)  All other conditions expressed in this Preliminary Agreement
shall have been satisfied.

Section 4.02. Subject to the terms and conditions of Section 4.03 hereof, the
Company shall have the right to unilaterally cancel this Preliminary Agreement at
any time prior to the time that the Acquisition Agreement is signed by the Agency
upon thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation delivered to the Agency at
the address set forth in Section 4.04 hereof.

Section 4.03. If the events set forth in Section 4.01 hereof do not take place
within the time set forth in said Section 4.01, or any extension thereof, or if the
Company exercises its right of cancellation as set forth in Section 4.02 hereof, the
Company agrees that: (A) it will promptly reimburse the Agency (and its officers,
members, agents or employees) for all reasonable and necessary direct out-of-
pocket expenses (including legal fees and expenses) which the Agency (and its
officers, members, agents or employees) may incur with respect to the execution of
this Preliminary Agreement and the performance of its obligations hereunder; and
(B) the obligations of the Company set forth in Section 3.02 and 3.03 hereof shall
survive the termination of this Preliminary Agreement and shall remain in full force
and effect until the expiration of the period stated in the applicable statute of
limitations during which a claim, cause of action or prosecution relating to the
matters described therein may be brought and payment in full or the satisfaction of
such claim, cause of action or prosecution and the payment of all expenses and

7

-109-



charges incurred by the Agency (and its officers, members, agents or employees)
relating to the enforcement of the provisions therein stated.

Section 4.04. (A) All notices and other communications hereunder shall be
in writing and shall be deemed given when mailed by United States registered or
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

(1)  To the Agency:

Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue

Watertown, New York 13601

Attention: Donald C. Alexander

With a copy to:

Joseph W. Russell, Esq.

Barclay Damon LLP

120 Washington Street, Suite 500
Watertown, NY 13601

(2)  To the Company:

OYA Wayside Drive LLC

Att: Terrance Rasmussen

144 Front Street West, Suite 310
Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5]J 2C7

With a copy to:

Bernard Corpus, Esq.
144 Front Street West, Suite 310
Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5]J 2C7

(B) The Agency and the Company may, by notice given hereunder,
designate any further or different addresses to which subsequent notices,
certificates and other communications shall be sent.

Section 4.05. All covenants and agreements herein contained by or on
behalf of the Agency and the Company shall bind and inure to the benefit of the
respective successors and assigns of the Agency and the Company whether so
expressed or not.

Section 4.06. The obligations and agreements of the Agency contained
herein shall be deemed the obligations and agreements of the Agency, and not of any
member, officer, agent or employee of the Agency in his individual capacity, and the

8

-110-



.
k/
. -8

SN I B AR W

members, officers, agents and employees of the Agency shall not be liable personally
hereon or be subject to any personal liability or accountability base upon or in
respect hereof or of any transaction contemplated hereby. The obligations and
agreements of the Agency contained herein shall not constitute or give rise to an
obligation of the State of New York or of Jefferson County, New York and neither the
State of New York nor Jefferson County, New York shall be liable thereon and,
further, such obligations and agreements shall not constitute or give rise to a
general obligation of the Agency but, rather, shall constitute limited obligations of
the Agency payable solely from the revenues of the Agency derived and to be
derived from the lease, sale or other disposition of the Project Facility.

Section 4.07. Notwithstanding any provision of this Preliminary Agreement
to the contrary, the Agency shall not be obligated to take any action pursuant to any
provision hereof unless (A) the Agency has been requested to do so in writing by the
Company; and (B) if compliance with such request is reasonably expected to result
in the incurrence by the Agency (or any member, officer, agent or employee of the
Agency) of any liability, fees, expenses or other costs, the Agency shall have received
from the Company security or indemnity satisfactory to the Agency for protection
against all such liability and for the reimbursement of all such fees, expenses and
other costs.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into this Preliminary
Agreement as of the day and date first written above.

JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY

By:

Donald C. Alexander, Chief Executive Officer

OYA WAYSIDE DRIVE LLC

By:

Authorized Officer

-111-



OlWspued 6L-AIAOD 03 8np ||eD 09PIA INOOZ

dlwepued 61-AIANOD O} @np ||eD 99us18uoy ,
= _ L = | i
Juesqy - oy
B ] ) - ) B pesnoxg - ﬂ
) ~Judsald - 4]
e | |
L L 9 9 L 9 L 9 sjejo L
d d d d d d d d Ined yosulepp
d d d d d d d d piemp3 ‘M ‘Joipllepm
d d d d d 3 d d esIT “4aljlinH, ]
d d d E| d d d E| welljim ‘uosuyop
d d 3 d d d d d uyop ‘sbujuuap
d d d d d d d d PiABQ ‘@s1a9Au0D
d d d d d d d d Haqoy ‘osselly
deg | bny inp unp | Aew | Jdy Jel qad uep 29( AON 190 aweN

9duepuayy pleog 020zZ-6102

G986-28L (Sl€)
LO9EL AN ‘UMOLD}EAA
008 8lNg ‘snuaAy 3onquels 008
Aousby juswidojens( [elsnpu) Auno) uosieyar



